
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  

MMeeeettiinngg  
DDeecceemmbbeerr  55,,  22002222  

  



REVISED:  12/1/2022 6:37:12 PM 
 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
COMMISSIONERS’ IN ROOM & LIVESTREAMED ON FACEBOOK  

MONDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2022 
COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM 

6:00 PM 
 

 6:00 PM  Call to Order, Mr. Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney 
 
Item 1 6:01 PM Organizational Items  

 Swearing in of Commissioner Tracey A. Johnson & Commissioner Julius 
Walker, Jr & Commissioner-Elect John C. Spruill, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk 
to the Board 

 Election of Chairperson, Mr. Curtis S. Potter, CM/CA 
 Election of Vice-Chairperson, Commissioner Chair 

 
 6:10 PM Invocation / Pledge 
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 2 6:15 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes for November 7, 2022 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) 2023 County Commissioners’ Regular Meeting Schedule 
d) 2023 County Holiday Schedule 
e) Closing of Offices for Employee Christmas Luncheon 
f) FY2023-24 Budget Calendar 
g) RESO 2022-046 Approving the Sale of Surplus Real Property (SR1126/SR1164 

Weston Road) 
h) RESO 2022-047 Approving the Bonding of County Officials 
i) Opioid Letter of Support – MTW 

 
Item 3 6:20 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Department Information Update: Pettigrew Regional Library, Ms. Brandy Goodwin  
 
Item 5 6:50 PM Public Hearing:  DSS Community Transportation Program Application 

a) Motion to approve Application 
 
Item 6 7:00 PM Public Hearing:  Planning Board Mobile Home Ordinance Amendment 

a)  Motion to approve Ordinance Amendment 
 

Item 7 7:10 PM Employee of the Quarter, Board Chair 
 
  



REVISED:  12/1/2022 6:37:12 PM 
 

Item 8 7:20 PM FY22 Audit Summary & Draft Audit Report, Thompson Price Scott Adams & Co., 
CPA PA  

 
Item 9  7:50 PM Boards & Committees , Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
 
Item 10 8:00 PM Finance Officer’s Report and Budget Transfers/Budget Amendments, Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
 
Item 11 8:10 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney or Clerk 

a) DSS Annual Report for the Community Child Protection Team  
b) MTW Annual Report for the Child Fatality Protection Team  
c) Special Child Protection Cost 
d) Approval of Bids for 72-Person Bus 

 
Item 12 8:20 PM Closed Session pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and  

§143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
   

 
ADJOURN or RECESS 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  1    
 
       DATE:  December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:   Organizational Items      
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Call to Order (County Manager) 
 
The Clerk to the Board will swear in Commissioner Tracey A. Johnson, Commissioner 
Julius Walker, Jr. and Commissioner-Elect John C. Spruill 
 

a) Election of Chair 
According to G.S. 153A-39 the Board of Commissioners shall choose one 
member as Chair and Vice-Chair for the ensuing year. The County Manager will 
conduct the meeting for the process of electing the Chair. 

 
b) Election of Vice-Chair 

The Chair will then conduct the election of the Vice-Chair. 
 

c) Invocation/Pledge 
  

d) Additions/Deletions 
 
  
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  2 
 
       DATE:  December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes for November 7, 2022. See attachments at the end of the 
Agenda Package 

 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 

See attachment. 
 
c) 2023 County Commissioners’ Regular Meeting Schedule—please note that there is a 

meeting scheduled to be held in Creswell and one in Roper. See attachment. 
 

d) 2023 County Holiday Schedule 
See attachment. 
 

e) Closing of Offices for Employee Christmas Luncheon 
The County’s Employee Appreciation Committee (EAC) has scheduled this year’s 
Employee’s Christmas Luncheon for Friday, December 16, 2022 from 12:30 PM to 2:30 
PM at the Plymouth Church of Christ Family Life Center.  The EAC would like for the 
County to be able to close for the 2 hours of the luncheon. 
 

f) FY2023-24 Budget Calendar 
See attachment. 
 

g) RESO 2022-046 Approving the Sale of Surplus Real Property (SR1126/SR1164 Weston 
Road)  See attachment. 
 

h) RESO 2022-047 Approving the Bonding of County Officials 
See attachment. 
 

i) Opioid Letter of Support – MTW 
See attachment. 

 













 

 

Washington County Commissioners’  
Regular Meeting Schedule  

2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meetings are held at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room at  

116 Adams Street, Plymouth, unless otherwise noted. 
 

*Meeting to be held in Roper.  
Location will be announced at a later date. 

 
**Meeting to be held in Creswell. 

 Location will be announced at a later date. 
 
 

 Revised:  December 1, 2022 

DAY(S) OF WEEK DATE(S) OF WEEK 

1st Tuesday January 3, 2023 

1st Monday February 6, 2023 

1st Monday March 6, 2023* 

1st Monday April 3, 2023 

1st Monday May 1, 2023 

1st Monday June 5, 2023 

1st Monday July 3, 2023 

1st Monday August 7, 2023** 

1st Tuesday September 5, 2023 

1st Monday October 2, 2023 

1st Monday November 6, 2023 

1st Monday December 4, 2023 



 Revised: November 28, 2022 
 

 

 

2023 Washington County Holiday Schedule 

2023 HOLIDAYS DAY(S) OF WEEK DATE(S) 

New Year's Day Monday January 2, 2023 

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Monday January 16, 2023 

Good Friday Friday April 7, 2023 

Memorial Day Monday May 29, 2023 

Juneteenth* Monday June 19, 2023 

Independence Day Tuesday July 4, 2023 

Labor Day Monday September 4, 2023 

Veterans Day Friday November 10, 2023 

Thanksgiving Thursday & Friday November 23 & 24, 2023 

Christmas Monday, Tuesday & Wednesday December 25, 26 & 27, 2023 

 
*Juneteenth is a new Local Holiday approved by the  

Board of Commissioners in 2020. 



Budget Calendar
Washington County, North Carolina

Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024 (aka FY24)

Tues* 1/3 Presentation of Proposed Budget Calendar & CM/Board
Discussion/Scheduling of Budget Workshop

Tues** 1/17-1/19 Budget Planning Workshop Date/Time (TBD) CM/CFO/Board

Wed 2/8 Dept. Head Budget Kickoff Meeting CM/CFO
Distribution of Budget Forms & Instructions DHs (MANDATORY)

2/1-3/8 Departmental Budget Consultations/Assistance CM/CFO
Ask for Assistance if needed DHs (MANDATORY)

Wed 3/8 Departmental Budget Request Submission Deadline DHs 159-10 (April 30)
Includes: Revenues, Expenses, All Supporting Docs/Materials

Departmental & External Budget Request Meetings CM/CFO/DHs/Misc
CM/CFO mtgs with Dept Heads, MTW, Library, Fire, other partners/agencies Budget Ord (Mar 31)
CM/CFO mtgs with School Admin 115C-429(a) (May 15)

Fri 4/14 Update of tax valuation due from Tax Department Tax

Mon 4/24 Working Draft Expense Budgets to DHs CM

Mon 4/24 Final of tax valuation from Tax Department Tax

Fri 4/28 Balancing of Draft Recommended Budget CM/CFO

Mon* 5/1 Recommended Budget Published w/ CM's Budget Message 159-11 (June 1)
Presented to Board CM 159-11(b)
Filed with Clerk to the Board Clerk 159-12(a)
Board to Confirm Public Hearing Date Board

Fri 4/28 deadline for Publish notice in newspaper stating that budget Clerk 159-12(a)
5/3 publication has been filed and is open for public inspection &

setting time & place for public hearing on budget

TBD** May TBD Commissioners work sessions to review budget Board
with departments, agencies, school board as desired CM/CFO/Various

Mon** 5/15 Official public hearing on the budget Board/Public 159-12(b)

Mon* 6/5 Adoption of Budget Ordinance Board 159-13 (July 1)
Budget Ordinance may not be adopted until (a) ten days have
elapsed from date budget is filed  & (ii) public hearing  is held.

NOTES:
* = Reg Board Mtg Date
** = Extra or Non-Regular Board Mtg Date
All dates are subject to changes or adjustment as deemed necessary by the Board or County Management

TBD in March between 3/1-3/31

       2023 DATES BUDGET PROCEDURES ACTION BY
Responsible Party Statute Reference



Washington County Resolution 2022-046  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    
  

RESOLUTION 2022-046 
 

APPROVING AND ACCEPTING SALE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY, SR 
1126/SR1164, (WESTON RD), CRESWELL NC 

 
WHEREAS, the County Manager or their designee was authorized by RESO2022-041 of 

the Washington County Board of Commissioners to sell by electronic auction at www.govdeals.com 
the surplus properties described below by advertising such properties for sale from 10/5/22 to 
11/3/22 and accepting bids from 11/4/22 through 11/30/22; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Manger’s Office did in fact advertise and solicit bids for the sale 

of such properties pursuant to the authority and terms of the foregoing Board Resolution 
authorizing such action; and 

 
WHEREAS, the foregoing Resolution does respectively require that the bid results be 

reported to the Board at their next regularly scheduled meeting, and provide that the Board 
shall accept or reject the bid within 30 days of said report; and 

 
WHEREAS, the surplus properties and their respective bid results are hereby reported as 

follows: 
Address/ Deed 
Ref 

Tax PIN/ Value Taxes Owed 
@ 
Foreclosures 

High Bid/%Tax 
Value 

Notes/Others 

SR 1126/SR1164, 
(WESTON RD), 
CRESWELL NC 
Deed Book 522 
Page 531-532 

#7766.00-
29.4901 
 
$14,700 

$4,905.69 $8,653.75 
 
58.8% 
 
  

Net of Back 
Taxes:  
 
$3,748.06 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of County Commissioners of Washington County hereby 

resolves as follows: 
1. That the highest bid reported above for the purchase of SR 1126/SR1164, (WESTON 

RD), CRESWELL NC be accepted and approved. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 
 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 

http://www.govdeals.com/


Washington County Resolution 2022-046  Page 2 of 2 
 

2. That the County Manager or their designated agent is authorized to execute any and all 
necessary documents including without limitation deeds, settlement statements, or other 
closing or related legal documents approved by the County Attorney for the purpose of 
conveying the properties described above to their respective purchasers upon receipt of 
the purchase funds, or upon adequate legal assurances given by a bona fide settlement 
agent holding such funds in escrow for the purpose of disbursing such funds to the 
County upon actual closing.  

 

ADOPTED this ___ day of _______________, 20___ 
 

 

       __________________________________________ 
                                            Chair 

       Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
          Clerk to the Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
              

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-47 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE BONDING OF COUNTY OFFICIALS 

 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §105-349(c) requires a Tax Collector to 
provide a performance bond in such amount as the governing body may prescribe; 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §159-29(a) requires the Finance Officer to 
provide a performance bond with sufficient sureties in an amount to be fixed by the Governing  
Board.  The amount of the bond fixed by the governing board may not be less than the greater 
of the following: (1) Fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or (2) An amount equal to ten percent 
(10%) of the unit’s annually budgeted funds, up to one million dollars ($1,000,000); 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §159-29(b) requires each officer, employee 
or agent of a local government who handles or has in his custody more than one hundred 
dollars ($100) of the unit’s funds at any one time to provide a performance bond in an amount 
to be determined by the Governing Board; 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §159-29(c) authorized a local government 
to adopt a system of blanket faithful performance bonding as an alternative to individual bonds; 

WHEREAS, this Board is of the opinion that it is more efficient and economical and in 
the best interest of the County to have a system of blanket bonding rather than individual 
bonds to include in the blanket bond coverage for risks not protected against by the individual 
bond for Elected Officials, Finance Officers and Tax Collectors; 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §161-4 requires every Register of Deeds to 
provide a performance bond with sufficient surety to be approved by the Board of County 
Commissioners, in the sum of not less than $10,000 nor more than $50,000; 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §162-8 requires the Sheriff to provide a 
performance bond in an amount determined by the Board of County Commissioners but shall 
not exceed $25,000; 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL 
JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §58-72-55 requires the Clerk to the Board 
of Commissioners to record in the proceedings the names of those Commissioners who are 
present at the time of approval of the official bonds and who voted for such approval; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statutes §58-72-55 further provides that any 
Commissioner may cause their written dissent to an official bond to be entered into the records 
of the Board. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Commissioners of Washington County hereby resolves as 
follows: 

1. That is Board hereby accepts and approves bonds for public officials as follows: 
a. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Collector, $100,000 with Ohio Casualty Insurance Company; 
b. Catherine “Missy” Dixon, Washington County Finance Officer, $1,000,000 with 

Ohio Casualty Insurance Company; 
c. Catherine “Missy” Dixon, Travel and Tourism Finance Officer, $50,000 with Ohio 

Casualty Insurance Company; 
d. Timothy Esolen, Register of Deeds, $50,000 with Ohio Casualty Insurance 

Company; 
e. John Barnes, Sheriff, $25,000 with Western Surety Company; and 
f. Blanket bond covering all officers, employees and agents, $500,000 with the 

NCACC Risk Management Pools. 
2. That pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes §58-72-55, the Clerk is hereby 

instructed to record the names of all Commissioners present at this meeting and 
who voted in favor of this resolution. 

3. That pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes §58-72-55, any Commissioner 
who votes against this resolution may cause their written dissent to be entered into 
the record of the Board. 

4. All acts and doings of officers, employees and agents of the County, whether taken 
prior to, on, or after the date of this Resolution that are in conformity with and in the 
furtherance of the purposes and intents of this Resolution as described above shall 
b, and the same hereby are, in all respects ratified, approved and confirmed. 

5. Any prior resolutions or parts thereof of the Board in conflict with the provision herein 
contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

6. That this resolution is effective upon adoption. 

ADOPTED this the 5th day of December, 2022. 
 
            __________________________________________ 

              Chair, Washington County Board of Commissioners 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
 Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
             Clerk to the Board  



Page 1 of 1 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

December 5, 2022 

Vital Strategies 
100 Broadway 4th floor 
New York, NY 10005 

Dear Daliah Heller, 

On behalf of Washington County, I am writing to confirm our intent to fund Martin-Tyrrell-Washington 
District Health Department’s substance abuse response program through the use of opioid settlement 
funds if this commitment is selected and matched as an awardee through the Vital Strategies RFA 
process. 

We are looking forward to partnering on this important initiative that will reduce unnecessary overdose 
deaths in Washington County. Recovery support services, early intervention programs, harm reduction 
services, and community naloxone distribution play a critical role in reducing overdose and providing 
people who use drugs with an opportunity to engage with life-saving health services. We are pleased to 
report that Washington County is committed to these interventions to improve community response to 
overdose over the long term and that our Board of Commissioners will be making the final decision on 
allocations. 

We understand that the completion of the RFA and successful selection by an independent review 
committee will determine the final Vital Strategies match. Our District Health Department is estimating 
a total of $70,000 per year as a commitment, with Washington County estimating a commitment of 
$21,000 yearly for the next three (3) years. We are currently in the in the project planning phase and 
the Washington County commitment will be finalized later this year. 

We are excited about this potential opportunity to partner with Vital Strategies and to leverage opioid 
settlement funds to save lives and build resilient communities. 

Sincerely, 

Curtis S. Potter 
Washington County Manager/Attorney 

COMMISSIONERS: 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON  
ANN C. KEYES 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL 
JULIUS WALKER, JR.

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

   JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   3  
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Department Information Update: Pettigrew Regional Library, Ms. 

Brandy Goodwin  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Each month a different Department Head will be asked to come and speak to the 
Commissioners about the work going on in their area.   
 
For the December 5, 2022 meeting, Ms. Brandy Goodwin of the Pettigrew Regional 
Library will give a presentation on what’s going on in the Library. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Hearing:  FY24 Community Transportation Program 

Application, Ms. Kim Blevins, Transportation Supervisor 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
DSS has requested a Public Hearing for the Board to approve them applying for the FY24 
Community Transportation Program. 
 
A motion will be needed after the Public Hearing to approve DSS applying for the FY24 
Community Transportation Program. 
 
See attachments. 
 
 
 



  
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof. 
 

This is to inform the public that a public hearing will be held on the proposed Fiscal Year 2024 Community 
Transportation Program Application to be submitted to the North Carolina Department of Transportation no later 
than Dec. 9, 2022. The public hearing will be held on Dec.5, 2022 at 6:00 PM before the (governing board) 
Washington County Board of Commissioners at 116 Adams Street in Plymouth, NC 27962.  
 
Those interested in attending the public hearing and needing either auxiliary aids and services under the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) or a language translator should contact Clifton Hardison on or before Dec. 
5, 2022, at telephone number 252-793-4041, ext. 205 or via email at cliftonh@wcchs.org. 
 
The Community Transportation Program provides assistance to coordinate existing transportation programs 
operating in Washington County as well as provides transportation options and services for the communities 
within this service area.  These services are currently provided using a mini van or light transit vehicles.  Services 
are rendered by Washington County dba Riverlight Transit. 

The total estimated amount requested for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. 

 
NOTE: Local share amount is subject to State funding availability. 

Project 

 

Total Amount Local Share  

Administrative 

 

$ 100,731 $ 15,110  (15%) 

Operating (5311) 

 

$       $        (50%) 

Capital (Vehicles & Other) 

 

5310 Operating 

 

$ 271,800 

 

$        

$ 27,180 

 

 

$       

 (10%) 
 
 
 
 
(50%) 

Other ___________________ 

TOTAL PROJECT  

  
 

$       

$ 372,531 

$       

$ 42,290 

 (    %) 

 

 

  

Total Funding Request Total Local Share 
 
This application may be inspected at Washington County Department of Social Services from 8:30 AM-5:00 PM.  
Written comments should be directed to Clifton Hardison or Lynn Swett before Dec. 5, 2022.   

End of Notice  

Note:  AN ORIGINAL COPY of the published Public Hearing Notice must be attached to a 
signed Affidavit of Publication.  Both the Public Hearing Notice and the Affidavit of Publication 
must be submitted with the grant application. 



Note re: CTP for 2024 

 

Good Afternoon Julie, 

 

I have attached copies of the grant applications (2) and the forms that will need to be signed at the 
December 5th Board of Commissioners meeting. The public Hearing notice will be published in the 
Beacon on Wednesday, the 23rd as well as the 30th. I want to mention to the Board that this year NCDOT 
has listed a 15% Local Share for our Admin Grant ($15, 110) and the Capital Budget would provide for a 
10% local contribution ($27,180). Two new vehicles are listed on the Capital Grant for FY2024. 

 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter. Lynn Swett and myself will be at the hearing. 

 

Please let me know if you need anything further from me.  

 

Kim Blevins 

Transportation Supervisor for Riverlight Transit 

Washington County Department of Social Services 

P O Box 10 

209 E Main Street  

Plymouth, NC 27962 

kimb@wcchs.org 

(252) 793-4041 Ext. 200 Office 

(252) 793-3195 Fax 

 

 

mailto:kimb@wcchs.org


��������	��

������	���������������������������� !�"���#�$"%&����'&"(���#�)���* + ,-�.$)!/0)�102)/3-����44+ 50��&6�7889�������5(3:02/.;�)1�<9=><?78891&�"� + ,-�.$)!/0) �1&"���44'&"�#@'4��'A�+ 7�/5��'&��&%5��%&���"A�B%�&�C+ 9D7D<<5��'&��&%5��%&���"A�B�&C+ >DE8D<FG�����#�'##�H#�D)&"?�'##�H#�+ �'##�H#� �
1&"��A��$"%&����'&"1&"��A�5��4&"+ I'���#�J'"4/�#�KL&"�+ <M<9=EF8F7G�6+N��'#+ O'�HPQAAL4R&��,�H4'��+G�����#�$@)��H��+ M>?>888EF=@2)��)��H��+ 8<=78FE=M1G@-+5�&S�A��)��H��+

B)1@0/�:�6'����5���'A'K��'&"-�&�"�4C T�U��4��� )1@0/�B24��0"# C/&��#�N6K�"4�4/&��#�1&"����-AA�4��"��G����T�J�"��/&��#�)���N6K�"4�4D1&4�
/&��#�5�&S�A��N6K�"�'����4 7889E7R888R88 8R888R88 7889E7R888R88/&��# G�����# G�����#�)&"?�'##'"� )1@0/ (&A�#/&��#�G�"�'"��BVC/&��#�G�"�'"��BWC5�&K&4���5�&S�A��G�"�'"� 788R88888X8R88888 8R88888 MR88888 7MR88888 7889E7R88X8MXFR88 8R88 M8E>R88 7M777R88



����� ����	�� ����	��
���������� ����� ����������
�������
��������
�������
������	����
�������
���
���
��������
��� 
 ������

�����
���!� "#""""""#""""" "#""""" "#""""" "#""""" "#"""#"" "#"" "#"" "#""��$ %�$ &�$������
���������'	��� ��
��$(
%�$(
&�$
)��� 
�$���	
��$
)���
�*
����	��
�������
������ (
����	+� �
,"#""""" "#""""" "#""""""#"" "#"" "#""��$ %�$ &�$������
������������	����
��$(
%�$(
&�$
)��� 
�$���	
��$
)���
�*
����	��
�������
������ (
����	+� �
,"#""""" "#""""" "#""""""#"" "#"" "#""-����	!�� �	������ �����
�� � �����
�� �-����	!
.�*�	�����������
-���	�� /0(1/2#"" "#""�����
�	���� 34(255#"" "#""�����
-���	!
���
�	���� 03(324#"" "#""�����
����	�
������� "#"" "#""�����
��	�
6������ "#"" "#""�����
����	�
������� 
���
��	�
6������ "#"" "#""



���������	
 �	����	�� �������	���	�������
���������	����	
�������	�
����
�����������
�������	��������������
������
���������� ��� !"�#�� �#���	����	
������$�����������
�� �#�� �#���	���%�����
�	�������
����
��&
�	'� �#�� �#���	���(	���%���) �#�� �#���	����	
������$�����������
���*�%�����
�	�������
����
��&
�	'��*�(	���%���) �#�� �#��
+,������
�����
�������������
��
������-������#�,�	.����	
������	
/�����'����#�,�	.���������)�0	1�1���������&%���
2
�
������

�
���)�	��)	����)��/���#�&3��)��3�
��
����-����������.�����������������	�'
 ��)����	.����	
��1��4���.�������	�������������)�
���#�,������	
�����/	�������	
��5��
��$���������3	��3���)����������
��#���)��	1
6������6666� ����7�������8����9�$���"� :
��7�������������9�����"� "���7�������8�
���9�%���"� ;�)�7�������������9�8�
�"� �	��<=>?@ ABCDDDEDD�F$� ABCDDDEDD�F$� ABCDDDEDD�F$� ABCGHIEDD�F$� IDDCGHIEDDF$�
,�	.���������)��	1 *:�:; :J ���#�� :J ���#�� :J ���#�� :J !"�#�� ��� !"�#�� �,�	�	����K����������
��������'���'�	/�����5�:�� *



���������	
 �	�	�	����	
� �

��������� �����
���� �	�	����� ����������	�
� ��	����	����	����	
� ������� ���������������	
���������	
 �	�	�	����	
� �

��������� �����
���� �	�	����� ����������	�
� ��	����	����	����	
� ������� ���������������	

!"#$%�&'(')$%$*+,- ./01.23445�� 4344�5�����
��	�����6 7 89:7;<=99 <<=6 7 >>:79?=99 9 9=99 ����
��	�����6 7 >;:8<@=99 <9=6 7 78:?>?=99 9 9=99 �
���������	
 �	�	�	����	
� �

��������� �����
���� �	�	����� ����������	�
� ��	����	����	����	
� ������� ���������������	
�	�A���	�����������B��!"#$%�&'(C)$%$*+,- 4344�5�� 4344�5��
����D�����A���	�����D�E������
����
�F���GH7><I J

���������	
 �	�	�	����	
� �

��������� �����
���� �	�	����� ����������	�
� ��	����	����	����	
� ������� ���������������	
�	�A���	�����������B��!"#$%�&'(/)$%$*+,- 4344�5�� 4344�5��
����D�����A���	�����D�E������
���	���
�F���GH7>KI J
����������
��L�����GH7>9I



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� ������������� �����	
�	�� ��������� ����������������������������� ������������� !"# $%&'$()**�+,� *)**�+,�
-.��/�	0��10
��2��� 3�4536788 8788�9���	0� 8788 8788:���/�	0��;<���	9���=���>��? 8788 8788�0
����2�����:���/�	0��;<���	9������=���>��? 8788 8788@��A��	9	�2 8788 8788

���� �����	
�	�� ����,����	�� B �����:��C���D E��F10
��2��� ���FC���D� ��������� ����������5���5� ���������G !HI" JK&(LL)**+,� *)**�+,�

-�	�A��=���>���;��58?
,��	���,��.�	�2������	M.�	���;�7��B��F������,����	��? �45�5N 8788<��	��0���������	M.�	���;�����,����	���O�:���	�	
��	�A�:�������A�?3�45N �N �45P3N 8788



���� �����	
�	�� ���������	�� � ������������� ������
������ ���������� ��������� ����������� ���!���"���#���$ %&'()(*+�,-./01 2345667889�� 8788�9��

:��
	���	;��	���<��=������>�����
���������?���@�����������?���@������
������A�B������	C��D #EE@EE F �G �!H!EF E@EE�	��C	�	���<��=������>�����
���������?���@�����������?���@������
������A E@EE F E E@EE E@EE9���
�����������
�����	���>�=�C��������
������A F  EE@EE E@EEI��J�������
�����	�� F E@EE E@EE��������	�K��C���L�� GHEEEF E@EE
���� �����	
�	�� �������
������ ��������� �����������$�
�������	��������M	����>��$EAN���=��	�K E@EE E@EE



���� �����	
�	�� ������
������ ���������� ���������������������������������
�� �� !"!! !"!!#��� ����������$����� !"!! !"!!��$ �%�&���'�������	� ��������� �(!"!! !"!!��$ �%�&���'���������)*��+	���,������
�������	�������*���-�"!!! ��!"!! !"!!#��	����.�+	�/��0��� !"!! !"!!��'���1 !"!! !"!!���� �����	
�	�� ���������� �����������������������������

2$

�	�������#����	����)��!!-3��	���	���2$

�	���1�)4�$��5��
	� - �6�!!"!! !"!!7�	����� (6�!!"!! !"!!�0���2$

�	�������#����	��� (6!!!"!! !"!!&	������	�	�����8�9$������9	����� !"!! !"!!���
$����2$

�	�� �6�!!"!! !"!!���+����������
�����	��)��'���'����
�������+���
����-)�(!!-



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� ���������������������
��������������
�����	�����������������
������������
������������������� ��	�	
�������	
��!" �#"��$�� �$��������%&'�	������ �#���$�� �$��������!�(����!
�������)������*��	��������������	���&������	�����&����	������
���	�	����+�����������������
�����	�������	���$� �$�� �$��
���� �����	
�	�� ��������� ������������������������"���,

����&�	���	�������������
�����%���	�� �#"��$�� �$��-��������%���	���.�� �#���$�� �$�����'	����%���	���.�� �$�� �$�����'	����%���	���.�� �$�� �$������������&�	���	����! �$�� �$������ �����	
�	�� ��������� �������������/�	�	�	���������0�����	�	�� �$�� �$��



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� �������������������������������������

������	� ���� ��������������� ���� ��������� ���� ���� �!�� ���� �������"��������	�� ���� ���� 	�#��$��%&	����'�	�	�(�)	�� ���� ������"���* ���� �������� �����	
�	�� ��������� ������������+����
,�	��	�#�����)	��	�#�-����.,�	��	�#�����/�
������	�� ���� ������"���* ���� �������� �����	
�	�� ��������� ���������/�
�	�������0�	���������-����.



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� ���������������������
������������
��������	
���� ����� �� � ��������	���	�������	
���� ��! �� � ����"���# � �� � ������ �����	
�	�� $�%	���&$	�	����'����� ��������� ����������������(����

'�)���	�	�*&+�����	���,����-$��.��	�*�,+�	��'����$��.��	�*�/	������� - 0���� �� � ��+�����	�����1�����,$�%	����'�������#�,2��3���������������-- ����� �� ����� �� � ����"���# � �� � ������ �����	
�	�� ��������� �����������4���4(
���
�����5�

����5��)	����,����������-�,��4�-���
�����+��*����	�*�5��)	��� � �� � �����
�����5�

���&��"�	����'��	������ � �� � ����"���5��)	����,����-



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� ������������� �����	
�	�� ��������� �����������������������������������������

������������	�	��  !   !  ��"���#�������#������	��  !   !  �$
����#�%��
�����	���  !   !  �����	���&���	���  !   !  ��	�	���'�($
��#���(�"���	���()
���� �*   !   !  +�����$��������	����,���������������	��&#���$�+�$�-��$	��&���	���.  !   !  &��"�	�#�&���	���  !   !  ��/���'  !   !  ���� �����	
�	�� �����0��+���/ ����1+���/� ��������� ���������������������
2�������1�2����0��
���#�,	���"�����
#��1��"�����������������$���.�,��� .

2�����1�3"	��	���4��"$5����1�+���/�#�0�#$����  !    !   !  2�����1��6����4��"$5����1�+���/�#�0�#$����  !    !   !  ��/���'  !   !  



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� �����������������
������������
��������	
�����������������������
����� ���!��� �"�� �"��������������
�����#���!��� ��$%��"�� �"������ �����	
�	�� ��������� �����������&���&���&&��&%
������������	
��������&�����������'�
������	������	
���� �"�� �"�����������(����)��*���� �"�� �"�����������������	���	�������	
������+��������'��	�$���,����	��������-�������� �"�� �"����.���/ �"�� �"������ �����	
�	�� ��������� ��������������������&
#��0	�������*�	�������������������������������	���	�������	
���� �"�� �"���1������	
���� �"�� �"��'�
������	������	
���� �"�� �"��



���� �����	
�	�� ��������� ����������������� ���
��������	
���� ���� ����������� ���� �������� �����	
�	�� ����� ��	���� !�"	���#����� ��������� ������������$���%���&��������

'�������������(���	�)�*����+
,��
���-�������������.	�/	�	�-�*���������	������� ��	����'��������+ ���� ���� ��	���� � ���� ���� �����	���	�- ���� ����,��0���	�����.	�/	�	�	�� ���� ����1
��	���.	�/	�	�	�� ���� ����

���� �����	
�	�� �	��������� ,�������)� !�"	���#����� ��������� ��������'��	�����������*��2�+�*,�	����

��3����0�'��	����������,�������)��4��������	�����5���6



���� �����	
�	�� �	�������� ���������� ���	��������� ��������� ������������� �����������	��� !"������	��������"���#$!��������������# %&%% %&' %&%% %&%% %&%%
���� �����	
�	�� ��������� �����������(���((
��)��*	����)�����!��(%#���������+���	
�	���,����� -.%&%% %&%%��)��, %&%% %&%%

�����/�������������������
��������
��

���	����������������)�����!�# 



��������	�
�	���
����
����
���������	��������
��
���� !"#$
 




���������	
�����
�����������

����������������� �!�"� �#$�%�#�$ & '()�(& (* ������+&(��$,-'(",�!(�($ �.(/�!,(& 0��1���2�� �2��3�"�$&�#$�.(/�!,(& �2�� �2��� /(����"� �, �1���2�� �2��%*4�$*(*��(!/$#,#5- �2�� �2��6�&(,�$(��(!/$#,#5- �2�� �2��7�!�,� -�6�*5( �2�� �2��� /(��3�"($&(& �2�� �2���89:; 0��1���2�� �2��

<(5�,����(=�>%?@A�B������+��C��#D(! ����E(�=%**�(&&= ���6#��FGGH��������<C��+�@I����JHKLJMFGGH�#�$ -= >%?@A�B��� ��#$5�(&&�#$�,��& ��! = F& 7(*(��,�A�����E(�= NLMLGGGOPK�+�?����E(�= GJKFGPOKN�7�%Q=
��#5���= �JGJPR�%�A�%<�#$ �! ��(�&#$= S���6,(4�$&�(,("/#$(= JNJMHKOMPGPF7��=3���,= T��EUV!!/&W#�5>(E�?� (= VVVWV�&/!#$!W#�5�(��#*�#X��(�X#���Y= Z�,�FI�JGJJ�(��#*�#X�(�X#���$!(�[�#\= Z�$�OGI�JGJN7(*(��,6�,,�E,(]�#$M6�,,�E,(^ = 6�,,�E,( �

�_8̀8abc�defcgfh7(*(��, iGWGGGGG JFHIPPY7(*(��,��#$M6�,,�$5 GWGGGGG GWGG����� FGWGGGGG JHIFiGWGG<#!�, FGWGGGGG JHIFiGWGG �̀ _̀8jbc�defcgfh7(*(��, GWGGGGG GWGG7(*(��,��#$M6�,,�$5 GWGGGGG GWGG����� GWGGGGG GWGG<#!�, GWGGGGG GWGG



���������	
�����
�����������	�������

����� ������� � �!"�� ����� ������� ������������	#����$%& ������� ����'%& ������� ����(%& ������� ��������� ������� ���� )����*��	#����$%& ������� ����'%& ������� ����(%& ������� ��������� ������� ����+,-./0.	.12.3	/124546/2.7	06.17418	6.3	9:/32.3�	,3;<.524;10	/3.	;1-=	.024>/2.0�	,3;<.52.7	5/0?	@;A	A4--	/00402	B'$	41C1/154/-	6-/11418	2?3;:8?;:2	2?.	=./3�	BD	2?.	D:17418	3.9:.02	40	/7<:02.7	6.3	EF$��	5;-:>1!	2?.	63;<.524;10	A4--	G./7<:02.7	2;	05/-.	EF$��	5?/18.0�	,-./0.	5;12/52	=;:3	H.84;1/-	I3/12	J6.54/-402	D;3	D:32?.3	/00402/15.��;2/-K���� LMLL LMLL LMLL NOPQRLLMLL NOPQRLLMLL 	S./3T0USSSS �02	V:/32.3W:-=	�	X	J.62	Y� �17	V:/32.3�52	�	X	$.5	Y� Y37	V:/32.3W/1	�	X	'/3	Y� Z2?	V:/32.3�63	�	2;	W:1	Y���� ����� ����� ����� � �"������ � �!"������;E;[	\�	-;A	;3	1;	.>4004;1	G:0	40	7.C1.7	/0	/	6/00.18.3	].?45-.	:0.7	2;	63;]47.	6:G-45	23/106;32/24;1	2?/2	0:̂ 54.12-=3.7:5.0	.1.38=	5;10:>624;1	;3	?/3>D:-	.>4004;10!	415-:7418	743.52	5/3G;1	.>4004;10!	A?.1	5;>6/3.7	2;	/	02/17/37].?45-.�	�?.	02/2:2;3=	7.C1424;1	415-:7.0	_.3;	.>4004;1	23/1042	G:0.0!	A?45?	/3.	7.C1.7	/0	G:0.0	2?/2	63;7:5.	1;	743.525/3G;1	.>4004;10	/17	1;	6/3245:-/2.	>/22.3	.>4004;10	:17.3	/1=	/17	/--	6;004G-.	;6.3/24;1/-	>;7.0	/17	5;17424;10�&̀/>6-.0	;D	_.3;	.>4004;1	G:0	2.5?1;-;84.0	415-:7.!	G:2	/3.	1;2	-4>42.7	2;!	?=73;8.1	D:.-X5.--	G:0.0!	G/22.3=X.-.52345G:0.0!	/17	3:GG.3	243.	23;--.=	G:0.0	6;A.3.7	G=	;].3?./7	5/2.1/34.0�\#abP$.0534624;1 &>>404;1�=6. %:78.2.7F;02 V� %:78.2.7�;2/- V� EF$���
K���� LMLL LMLL
cad	��	bLde�M	fg	h��	e����	K������	ij�k�����������l	d	PN	m�M	ij�	n./]=	7:2=����X&,�	74.0.-	G:0	G:4-2	/0	/1	412.83/-:142�  �����-2.31/24].	D:.-	.1841.	X	n=G347	&-.52345 	



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ������	
��!�
��
�!"!��# !����	
��!�
��
�!"!�������!#�� !��"$���!%�	��
�!�	
&����	
!'��� !()*+���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
,�-!��!,)-.� !/0!1�2!.���3!�3�456�!7859:;<��=;>;4�?!-!@�!A3 !785!B��&�!�����%C!DEFG!������	
�!���
�����!������!H��H����!��!�
!�
������!�
��I JDEE�C����
���&�!$���!�
��
�!"!B�H���!�������� !����	
��!�
��
�!"!��# !����	
��!�
��
�!"!�������!#�� !��"$���!%�	��
�!�	
&����	
!'��� !()*,���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��+�K!16LM�!�3�456�!N;M6=�;!9:;<��=;>;4�?O!�	��"	
"�P�����!����!&�P����!Q����R��&�
!�P�����ST!�����
�
�!�P�!&�
"����!��HT	U���
�!�
�������!P����		�!�
�!R����



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
!	��"#��$%#��������#&#'(#�����
����)���#!�#���*�
#+,	#��-. # ''/0���1�#2��1���1�#2���������&3���#4�	��
�#�	
*����	
#5��� #6787���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
2�����#2		3#9�
#)2��������
�.#&#:����
���";<#=>?�@A�BCADA#E�F�EC�GHIJHIK#F�LLMNOMPL # Q/00�����	
��#�
��
�#&#��������&3���#4�	��
�#�	
*����	
#5��� #678R���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����IK���� �� � ������� IK���� �� � ��S0T#-��U�#��
���#9�U����#+,+U����U���#��3�)2��������
�.#V#�	��&	
&�U�����#����*�U����#)����+��#*�
#�U�����."#�����
�
��U�#*�
&����#��!"#	W���
�#�
�������U����		�#�
�#+����#!	��"#3�������	�����#����#��3�%#J#XYMM�EY�CP#L���C�NZ��P#F��N #[CN #�A\D����PG#E�F�EC�G#H]\� C # '(00� 0' 00



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � !!!!"!! !"!!
#�$%&'�$"&�()*����+,&-�#�-.�,&/�!#�$"0(�,&)1&2+.314&56�&789:��;�&<��;���;�&<���������=>���&?�	��
�&�	
@����	
&A��� &BCDE���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����

�D!!!!"!! !"!!
����� �D!!!!"!! !"!!
FCG&9.HI�&�+�4J.�&K1I.-�1&565I11�-I�.+�.L�&0M1#��-1(14�:&/&�	��=	
=�N���������&@�N����&O����P��&@�
&�N�����QR�����
�
�&�N�&@�
=����&��SR&	T���
��
�������&N����		�&�
�&P����&S	��R>����&���	�����&����&��>�U&F&�42&DVI11�-I�.+&W���.�4&X��+&#��4J&'.4"�()*����+,&-�#�-.�,&/&Y&#�$%&'�$"�()*����+,&-�#�-.�,&/&�Y&#�$" Z[\\� \Z \\
����	
��&�
��
�&=&��] &����	
��&�
��
�&=&̂�S���&�������� &



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � !!!!"!! !"!!
� � �����	
��#�
��
�#$#������%&��������'���� #���(�#)���������(�#)��(��$*���#+�	��
�#�	
,����	
#-��� #./ 0���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����

����� !"!! !"!!
)�����#)		*#1�
#2%��*�#3)��������
�4#$5���#�
���6#����#*����#���	�����#�
����	���*�7#8#��#9#:;<<�=;�>?#@���>�AB"#C>A"�DEF����?G#=�H�=>�G#I#9#H�JK#C�J"�DEF����?G#=�H�=>�GIL#H�J" # MNOO�����	
��#�
��
�#$#��������$*���#+�	��
�#�	
,����	
#-��� #./P����������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� !"!! !"!!
C>A>Q�A#R#S?�BB�Q<?#TU<H��=<D<A�V#W5����#,�'����6#���
����#��	�����	
,�'����6#��X����#��������#$#N�����
����7#��	��	,��#,�'����#3N#��X4�,����Y��#Z[\]#̂�?#_\\I: àa\#bUcda" # eNOO�ZH�>�Af#_==<BB>E�<#C>A>Q�A#=�DH�>�A�g>�;#_b_K#h	2����#i		�j#2'����'�������#�
�#k#�	#l#2'����'���#�����	
�7 lmOO���$*���#+�	��
�#�	
,����	
#-��� #



����� ���� �����	
����������� ����������� ���������� � ���������!" � #��$� 
����� ���� ����
%&''�(�)*+,-.�+)/0+'��.+1+2�3)4)!56��")���)��)�������)�6)��!���������7)�!����!��)���8#��9:5��);6��"<= ) >?@@ $�����!")�����)9)���"��9A�")B���!�)���5�����)C��� )�	
	���������� ����������� ���������� � ���������!" � #��$� 

����� ���� ����

DEF)G-H,�)�(�2I-�)*+,-.�+)JKJ,++�.,�-(�-L�)/0+'��.+1+2�3)M)N�OP4�24.,�II-I�P'+)Q+,-.�+)/R&��J�P)Q�2).,�II-I3S(+��-2-2H)�,+)Q�24�P'+).�TS)�U+(-2H-2.(+�I+O),+�O(��1)�2O)J-O+)T�OPSL&��P)�&��1��-.)�-L��)VD)�2O)WX,++�.,�-()%���-�2)Y��()'��2I)Z-2��1T&����(P).�'�.-�P)4E)'�[S)Z�[��1T&����(P).�'�.-�P)4DD)'�[� \]>@ $�����!")�����)9)�#̂ )$�����!")�����)9)_�̀���)�"����� )$�����!")�����)9)���" )��!a):�!�����a):!�a��9A�")B���!�)���5�����)C��� )



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����

����� � �� � ��

!!"#$%&'�#�(�)*%�#+,'%-�,#./.',,�-'�%(�%0�#12,3��-,4,)�5#6#�	��7	
7�8���������#9�8����#:����;��#9�
#�8�����<=�����
�
�#�8�#9�
7����#��>=#	?���
��
�������#8����		�#�
�#;����#>	��=@����#���	�����#����#��@�A#!#.',,�-'�%(*���%�)#B��(#3��) #C%) #�4DE����(F-�3�-%�F#GH!#3�IJ#C�I #-�3�-%�F#GHK3�I #3�E*#H#.',,�-'�%(#3�**,)&,( �LMN#$�+#2OPQM2ON#R#ST$#G#$�+*,��%)&#SRUUV�#WO#CVTMXMOT YZ[\�����	
��#�
��
�#7#��] #����	
��#�
��
�#7#̂�>���#�������� #���_�#̀���������_�#̀��_��7@���#a�	��
�#�	
9����	
#b��� #cdee���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
V�',(#�(�)*%�#+,'%-�,#12,3��-,4,)�5#G��8��#���
���7����#9�8����#
	�#	�8��;������
��f��#�
#gahiA#i����f�#����#�
�#�@��@�#�j������A#:�
�����#���������#�	���	����
����	
< \A\\\����	
��#�
��
�#7#̂�>���#�������� #



���������	
������

����������� ������������ ��� ����!��� "# ��� �������$% "# &!�'�#(�)�� *+** *+**'�����$%	�� ���	,	�����% 	��,-��%	.���$��	!��/������	0��� 	123(�4	56	7�8	�9�6�9	)�	8��	�	����	:��;�9	6�9	��))�9��<=	������	>8;<�)	��)	8�;�9	�����;�	?@AB	���)�;	8�;�9	C3)��9	D���)��C+	E�<��	�9�	��F	���<�>��	8�;�9	)��)	�;�	����+G�H��%�	I��%$������	J�-���$���� &!�'� 	I��%$���	G�H��%�� &�K	G�H��%� L����/��	I��%$������M# N$O� ���� !���%���	GJ& N�%�$ � P�%���	!�����%�K MQ& !�������# R�G R# ST�T�UTPV��LWSX# 	 SYZ# [WU\# 	# R�G R# ST�T�UTPV[�!SZ# 	 S]Y# [WÛ# 	_&���̀	�a�$�����	G�H��%��	���%����	bI��$%	&��,P�Jb	�a�$�����	G�H��%��?@cB����������� ������������ ��� ����!��� "# ��� �������$% "# &!�'�#
(�)�� *+** *+**
d@e	)�	f*eg(	hi	(9����)	j8�	FkE�6)l���������m	e	Bn	79+	>8�+	o�$/�	���������%	p��	p��%�	$�	$�	���� �$%	����q ]̂]]#'�����$%	�� ���	,	!&[ 	L%����$��/�	-��%	�� ���	,	o�p���	�%������ 	'�����$%	�� ���	,	�����% 	?@cn



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
!�"#��#!$"%�#&'�(�)*+�#,-*#./0+1�2345�)*+�)6#"#7�#8( #9-* #:��;�#����������#<��#<����#��#�
#�
������#�
��= >?@@�A����
���;�#B���#�
��
�#C#:�<��� #����	
��#�
��
�#C#��D #����	
��#�
��
�#C#�������#D�� #E$F!���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
G�H#0+IJ�#�(�)*+�#KLJ+M�L#2345�)*+�)6#N�	��C	
C�O�����#����#;�O����#P����Q��;�
#�O�����RS#�����
�
�#�O�#;�
C����#��<S	T���
�#�
�������#O����		�#�
�#Q����<	��S#��U=#��������#C#VW#�����
����P���#<�#���;�
#QX	#��YR # VVZ@���[�#\��[���[�#\�������E$F$���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��]�+*L̂#]��1#K�)#2345�)*+�)6#N#_����
���S��#ỲaSb�4+b-b#M�5�M+�8#7G"7!#5�**L)IL(* cZ@@�



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� ���������� � �� � ������	
��!�
��
�!"!������ !#$%%���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
&�'!()*+�!�,�-.)�!/0+)1�0!232+00�1+�),�)4�!5678�-.)�-9!:!�	��"	
"�;�����!����<�;����!=����>��!<�
!�;�����?@!�����
�
��;�!<�
"����!��A@!	B���
�!�
�������;����		�!�
�!>����!A	��@!C�������	�����!����!��C�D!E!>;����;���!�����	
F		�!���
D!G�
D!��A����	��!��������!"H��I@!G�ID!��A����	��!��������!"JK!��ID=���!A�!���<�
!>L	!��M? ! JNKK���O�!P��O���O�!P�������#$%Q���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
&$'!()*+�!�,�-.)�!/0+)1�0!23()4�5678�-.)�-9!:!�	��"	
"�;�����!����<�;����=����>��!<�
!�;�����?@�����
�
��;�!<�
"����!��A@!	B���
�!�
�������;����		�!�
�!>����!A	��@!C�������	�����!����!��C�D!&!R!S!T+00�1+�),U���)�-!V��,!8��-.!W)- !�XYZ����,[1�8�1)�[!\!]!8�7̂!W�7 !�XYZ����,[1�8�1)�[!\!_]!8�7 J̀KK�����	
��!�
��
�!"!��a !



���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
����	
��!�
��
�!"!#�$���!�������� !����	
��!�
��
�!"!������%&��������'���� !���(�!)���������(�!)��(
*+,-���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��.�/012!.��3!4�5!67�/3�!89:;�50/�5<!=>���!�
���?!����!@����!���	�����!�
����	���@��A!B!��!C!DE11�FE�/G!H���/�50 !I/5 �JKL����GM!F�;�F/�M!N!C!;�:O!I�: �JKL����GM!F�;�F/�MNP!;�: QRSS�����	
��!�
��
�!"!������ !*+TB���������	
 ������	
��� ���������	�� �� ��������	��� �� �����
����� � �� � ��
I/5/U�5!7!VG�00�U1G!89:;�50/�5<!W>����!X�'����?!���
����!��	�����	
X�'����?!J�:/JLJ!F�;�F/�M!N!,;�0015Y1G0 !��	��	X��!X�'����!ZR!��[\�X����$��!]̂ _̀!3�G!a__NDb99_!c.d49 ! eRSS�];�/�5f!8�<!aFF100/K�1!I/5/U�5F�J;�/�5�!6/�E!acaO!g	h����!i		�jh'����'���!����!�
�!k!�	!l!h'����'��������	
�A lmSS�



��������	
�������� �����������
 ����
�
����� �� ����
�
������ ��  �	!��
"���� #$## #$##
%&''�(�)*+,-.�+)/01'�23-�24)5)6
7���
��
�)��)������)������)����
�8�����
����
)�

��)9���:
;
��
;
7���
<= >?@@�
!�������)�����
):)	�
�
� )���A	
�������� �����������
 ����
�
����� �� ����
�
������ ��  �	!��

"���� #$## #$##
BAC)D-E,�)"(�23-�)*+,-.�+)FGF,++�.,�-(�-H�)/01'�23-�24)5)����:��:�7�����)���
;
7���
)9����I��);��)�7�����<8)
��������7
);��:���
)��J8)�K
���)���
��
�7
�����)���)I��
)J���8)L����)�����������L�8)��M=)��������):)NN)����
��
�O�
�
�����)��)P��)����= QR>@�!�������)�����
):)� S )!�������)�����
):)T�J��)��
���� )!�������)�����
):)	�
�
� )��U
)V
���
��U
)V��U



��������	
��
� ���
�
����� ����������� �� ������������ �� ������

�� !" #$## #$##

%%&'()*+ '�,!-.) '/0+)1"0'23()4 5678!-.)�-9':'���;�'�<���
�'����=�<
���'>����?��'=��'�<���
�@A'	���
�
���<�'=��;����'��BA'C�	
��'
��	�����<���	�'���'?
��	'B��A'D����������
�'�
��'�
D�E'%'F+00"1+!),'G ! )�-H��,'8"!-$'I)-$'!JKL"! �,M'1!8!1) M'NO%'8!7P'I!7$'!JKL"! �,M'1!8!1) M'N'OQ8!7$�RST'U�V'W��XSW�T'Y'��U';'U�V'����
���Y����'��'Z��S[S��E \]̂_����
���'���
��';'R�B	
�'�����	
� '�	�̀�'W���	��	���
���'���
��';'��a '�
̀�'W��̀��������	
��
� ���
�
����� ����������� �� ����������� ���W��� �� ������ !" #$## #$##b +0,'�,!-.) '/0+)1"0'5678!-.)�-9N'��<�	'�	���
�;����'=�<
���'���<�	?
��'
����
c��'
�'Xd�YTET���
D�'����'���'
D'�
D�'�e�
����E>
������'���
�����'������������
�@



����������	
���������
����������� ������������ �� !��� "��� #$ �� !��$���%& �'�(%�� #$ )"�$*+�,
 -.-- -.--'�����%&���!����/�0�1�� ��&������ �'�����%&���!����/������& �23�*�4�56�7+8���6����+�8���,�
+	,
�9��:+��6+��
�������;<�
�,���=8:;���	+���8�:���
���	+:��>?@A�
+	,��:�8�:���B������C,��,
B.�D+;+��,����+E��
�;�=
��8�:�����,��	+:��,
�+.>?AA�F	��G8����8���H�"�����I��%1&��J� ��K�J��L%���J�M&���%1�����J�%� ���&%�� �I���������I�����%������%������N������I%��&�����OP�����������������&���J��L����O�I���������������J�%� ��L�������%�� �����OQ���R� ����������������%���I����%�L��������S����� OT����������� �� !��� "��� #$ �� !��� ���%& �'��(%�� #$ )"�'��$)�� %�%*+�,
 -.-- -.--�>?AU�F	���V8�W����H�"�����I�I%X��%�L����J��������J��%&��&%����J�%� ���L����S��������I�����%������%������N����%� I%��&�����O�Y+����+����	
8:��	+W8�����,�:E,���,�:��+6�E,��.D����+������W����
���<������+.+6�8�����������W<�,�:���������W,��:�	+��.Z�+9�:��+���	+�������W,���6+���,	�����W���V8����:.[����������� �� !��� "��� #$ �� !��� ���%& �'��(%�� #$ )"�'��$)�� %�%*+�,
 -.-- -.--�



��������	
����������������
����������� ���!����!"�!#�$ �%��&$!'���!$(�)*�%���*+,��!�-�������"!$��$%.�.�/�&�$&!���01����	����������2�����3��4���	5�	6���������2�����3�����4�����������7	��58�2	9����	���7	�����������6	2��74������2��������5:;���$.&�.!� <��/����+!�� => <��/����)!�%� ;?)�,%�� => @+;?)�>@!��%�%A	�� B5BB B5BB�������4�7���C�2��D2���
�+!���!"��&%$��&%$���"!$�$�#�����&$!���.�/�#� .����0A4����2���2�������49��������7	���	6�E2���2��4��F�BB��������6�����6��	6��	2���4��	���8�:�G�25�A4���H�������2�����	��G�9��I����	��G������J��4���
4	�����������7��67��������J4�74������������9���	2G�	6��2���2��51����	����������2�����3��4�����I�2�	6������3�����4�����������7	�����2��7458�2	9����	���7	�����������6	2��74������2��������5:�K����49��K������7��L7����GM;���$.&�.!� NOO.�.>)P&� <��/��>+!�� => <��/��>)!�%� ;?),%�� => @+;?>A	�� B5BB B5BB�*� .����<%���$.�� � Q0QQQ���RC4	������������
�S�$� %���!"��T�.&O����"!$�O%.��%.�.�/�#� .����(�.�����.�/(�-����!���.O.�����!(�O!�!$� !.��(��.$�-%�%���$(����01����	����������2�����3��4���	5�	6���������2�����3�����4�����������7	��58�2	9����	���7	�����������6	2��74������2��������5:�K����49��K������7��L7����GM �



���������	
 ���������� �������	�� � �������	��� ������� � �����	��������� !"!! !"!!#$$%&'('��')�*���+�,�-�.�����	��/��
���0����
���	1��0��2�����
��������	
3�4����0����������	1��	���1�	��5�
�	�36����7���������	
 ���������	�� � ���������	��� �������� � ��������� !"!! !"!!��8 93999���������
� 93999#$$:&�;+��<�='�*���+�,�-����>?������
���������	����
������	��	2�����
�����
��0��5�0�����3�@
����������	�����
���	2����8��0��	8������>�3�4����0����������	1��	���1�	��5�
�	�36����7���������	
 ���������	�� � ���������	��� �������� � ��������� !"!! !"!!��8 93999���������
� 93999#$$$A�B+ '�&�;+��C,+��-�D?8�������	��
���������
�5�0����3�4����0����������	1��	���1�	��5�
�	�36����7



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ���������������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ������ !"!!!�������#�
� !"!!!$�%&'()�&�*�&+��,%+��'��	���-���./ �0����	�1��#���.��������
�����0���#2�3����4�����#����	5��	���5�	#�6�
	�"7����8���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ������ !"!!!�������#�
� !"!!!9::;�)�)<(�%)�)=>+<?)%��'�@
�6����������4	
���
����#�
���1	���
	���
�����
� �	���������#�
�������4	
���0���#��A����BC.D��
�E������0�@#��	6�#�
��2F�#�0��
��������������1������2��4	
��"�G����	
�����#�������
�H��4��
	"��������#H��
�4������#�����	��"���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� �����9::IE���-	J���/��	�
��	������	
��
����
�������	
�6�4����"�G�������#��
��
������
	"�	5��
���8�3����4�����#�����	���K��0��"���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ������ !"!!!



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����������� �
� !"!!!#$$%&�'()�*+,-./(0��1�2����34���� ��3�
	���������5	6�"�7����	
����� �������
�8��9��
	"�������� 8��
��9������ �����	��":�	6���	
���	������� ����3	�����9���� ���;�����"���������	
 <  �����4�� �������	�� �� �������	��� ������� �� ������	��������� ���� �����#$=$>,?�@��.�@-A0?�1�2��
������	��
�������	����	
�B9���������
�������
�5	���	���C�������5�������
����6�9����"D�	�
	����;���������2�	��29������E��
�9���9���"�F������;������
�G������4�H ��	6�"���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ������B !"!!!#$%IJ('-K�(�L(��()-0A�M�L�A�?�1��	���	3��������
���
E	���	�	���
��9����5	���
6	�6���
�9�6�
���9�����
�����4��� �
� �8�9	
��
� 5��8��
E	���	�	���������	�6�9�����"��	�����	�5���
������54����
�����	����6�
	�"�NO����9��	������� ����3	���3���
���	
�4"P���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������



���������	��
���������������� ������������ �� �������� ��!" �# �$!�� �� %��# �&'(()(( ()((	�*�� &'(()(( ()((%�+ ,--.-- -/ -.-- --01234�5���"����4�6�+!���6���7�8!���� ��5��"��9:;������<�"9�+��5� ��5��"��9�="!�>����������� ������������ �� �������� ��!" �# �$!�� �� %��# ��%���!�!	�*�� ()(( ()((�012?;�@�"���!�!���8�����A !@"���B�:;������<�"9�+��5� ��5��"��9�="!�>����������� ������������ �� �������� ��!" �# �$!�� �� %��# �	�*�� ()(( ()(($��"!��<��� -.---CD�!����� -.---E!���;���!>�4<!����!���F�;!��������4�������!������������� ������������ �� �������� ��!" �# �$!�� �� %��# �	�*�� ()(( ()((G����!"�G���!""!���� -.---



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ���� !��
��	
 "#"""$%&'(��	)�����*�+�����,	����	
�-(*,.�/0�����	)��1�2��+����+
	�	�1�3��
4���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� �����������)�
� "#""" !��
��	
 "#"""$%&5������	))�
�����	
���6����/0�����	)��1�2��+����+
	�	�1�3��
4789:;<=8�7����>�??@A<:��<�A�78B<:8�CDE;�F89��G���?�H�=8�A8:899�;H�I�;�J7���8:GA���EHK���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� �����$%L&��+���(6�
������+
	�	�1�M��)��/�(6�
������+
	�	�1�/0�����	)��1�2��+����+
	�	�1�3��
4N<9����G8;�G�;FO�;8�A���<A:�@F8F��=�B8P�9@:G��9�;8D��:8?8A��G�;F�F;<B89P�A8�O�;Q�:�;F9P�8�:�



���������	�
������

����������� ������������ �� �������� ��!" �# �$!�� �� %��# ��%���!�!	�&�� '('' '(''�)*+,-�.��"��/������0�1�/��2��""!����34���5����67������5�"0�8��.9:��&���;����&����&�����<���=>��?;���
@?�&�����&�A����;��@?B������
���C@�DA��&(�E&&�
����&�A�&�(��F��������G��!5��!��0���5�2���!5��!H�%��������������G0��!5��!��0���5��!���!����G�5�"�����5����������!���5���5!��.�����5!��H�3I!5�"��6�JKLM�������!5��!��!���!����G��0���5�����5!���G���NOPQPPP�J!�R��!5��!��0���5�����������GSS��M�T���2�����I!5�"��5���"�G���������!��������4���5�����G���3�/�!�������5!��HS�����G0�U��8��������"���!5��!�2���!5��!��0���5�H/���"���!5��!�8��.����0���5����"!��5���H7�"�����5�������!5��!��0���5�81�����5!�����4����5����H����������� ������������ �� �������� ��!" �# �$!�� �� %��# ��%���!�!	�&�� '('' '(''�)*VWX�
?��Y�?&�>���Y?�Z�
&�?[\�D&�D�=%���9�"!���������!����G�����!������G����]�����H%��# �8�""��!������!���̂_� #�NRQPPP



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ���������������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ������ !"!!!�������#�
� !"!!!$%&'()*+�,���-�./0�)*�12+�).�3(-4�56,7�08)+���/��/9�:;1<�=(��	#��������
������>?@��A���B>@�	
��CDE�#	
��	�@�F�GH	��@�#	�����
�I���	�	J��A���B>��	J� ���@�C�G�"����K
���������	����	
�����L���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� �����������#�
� !"!!!MN��
��	
 !"!!!$%&&(*O,�)*+�5P�+)*�Q)��,)�R�*S��,8�,�,5,)�R�*S�/*O,�)*+T�,5,)�R�*S���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� �����������#�
� !"!!!MN��
��	
 !"!!!T)�R�*S���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� �����������#�
� !"!!!



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ���� !��
��	
 "#"""$%&'(�)�*�+,�-.�/0/1�,�2�)�*�+,��/2�,3�453,+�67�8��,9:5/9���(;,9/<9��/�52�=>/2��(�)�*�+,?���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� �����@;,+��/50�(A2�,B�(�)�*�+,�C;0+�3,?D.524+,��:���A�4+�94++,5��;9�:�2�,5�40:�EFGHI/53�*2�JK�KE@6.((L@MF>��;,+��/50�2A2�,B���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� ����N������O����	
 "#"""P����O����	
 "#"""G/9+�2�)��@Q9,�(�)�*�+,?D.524+,��:���A�4+�94++,5��;9�:�2�,5�40:�EFGHG(�@Q9,�JK�KE@6.((L@MF>���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������



���������	
���

����������� ������������ �� ����������� ! �"��# �� �� $��"��%&��� '('' '('')��� ���*������ +,+++-�!!�*������ +,+++
.�/&01�2030�4�&0�
5�/��6�7�/&01��88������&7980&�0�:5;5�5��7��0���&����<%�58��=����&75>����������� ������������ �� ����������� ! �"��# �� �� $��"��%&��� '('' '(''#��! ��?��� +,+++@A� ����� +,+++BCDEF�60�%�67&�&���<�:5�4G�5��&�60�6�0�/�0�7&���7��
����H&3I�5
�6��5�08���:7��6�0���0�35�7�/&01���0�5I���(�JH�5��7��67&�&��>����������� ������������ �� ����������� ! �"��# �� �� $��"���$��� � %&��� '('' '(''�BCKL



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ���������������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����
 !"�#�$%�&'(�)�$��*��&�$%)��+�()�)�,-��.�/����
���	
�������	
�0	�12�
�������	
3�4��
��
�
��3����
�0��3�	�4����54	�������	���61����7����8��	�������2���64����/����9�:�����	;����	<����0	���7��=�����8���6 >6>>>?@AB���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����C'&(D�%!��*�E�F'��&�G�&'(�'&!-H���7����	0�2	������
��61����7��	�������2���64����/����9�:�����	;����	<����0	���7��=�����8���6 >6>>>?@AA���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����I!J���+!!%K�LMM&�)%��K�G'&N!,�-�O������	������.��7��	
�������	
�	����
��P������	
6�9��;�83�1��������3�������0���3�
���	��
���	���6������/�����2��
�����
������7��	������2���6 >6>>>?@A@



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ���������������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ���� �!"�#$%&'('�'�!�)�*���+����	,��������	,��
�,	���	
�������	
-.����+����������-/����0����1�2�����	3����	4����,	���+��5�����6���- 7-77789:;���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����<'�=>�?@A8?�"'!B�)�*��C�	
�������	
D	�E��
����
�����������-������0��D	�E��	�0���	F�������
�����+��	�������F���- 7-77789:G���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����H�'�'�I�J�?@A�K��@)HL(�)��	������	������D��+�D����M���D��M�����������	������+	
����
���	��D���
�M�����	���	���	
�������	
-������0��D	�E��	�0���	F�������
�����+��	�������F��- 7-77789:NO=!$'!BA 'BP�'!B�)�QR����	��0����
���
����E�
���	�����+��
�-�S�
��
���
�������	�����������E�
�������,	��3�+�����- '(���!=�'�=T�L=?��'!=�#���$P�$�(��=(�'T��=�U�?�?=U=?=!$=��!�I�



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� ����� !"#$%%&''(�)*�+,-.�-&*/�.0'%�1,.-�2�3	��4�	
�������	
������5	�6��	
�������	
�	7���8����
��
�5��65�9���:���8���;�;<�3��8�
�
�����
�=����:������7������9����
�<�>	�����	��	
��	
���
8�
�</,'���.&�,�&?�1&@��,.&�$���%A�%�'��&'�,?��&�B�@�@&B&@&.%&��.�)����������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� ����� !!C�&�&1A�.&�+)'�&?�2���5�	���������8�
�������:	
���9���8$���%A�%�'��&'�,?��&�B�@�@&B&@&.%&��.�)����������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� ����� !CD���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������

����� ���� ����
 �!"�#$%�&�!'�(#�)*%��+�!�,*-*!�.*#/&%*"0�1�2�3�	���
�4������5��������	
6�5��7�	7��5��	8
����	�	4�������
�����	
�������	
���	9���1����5���	9������	�������3���:;����6����<�=�����	4����	9����7	���5��2�����>���: ?:???
@ABC���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����D�%&�&�E�F%G$&"&�&�!�0�H���5����	7�I����
�����������:1����5����������:;����6����<�=�����	4����	9����7	���5��2�����>���: ?:???@ABJK$"�.��L�.M*��*#��!N�K*!%M*"�0�O
��	������
������
����	4����	������
��������6�����	�:PQ*G$&#*"�L��!��LL#�/���RE�%&�E��#�%�$!�E�#*,�#N&!,���%��&�!��FSF�#*G$&#*-*!�"�&!%�$N*�-&!&-$-�"&T*��!NU&N�M��V��M*�"M*��*#W�-&!���$#!&!,�#�N&$"�&!�"M*��*#W��%%*""&R&�&�E����"M*��*#�RE�"&N*U��XW��!N�%�!%#*�*�L�N�N)�%*!�����"M*��*#�V�#����N&!,��!N�$!���N&!,�R$"�(#�/&N*�L��!��LL#�/���U&�M��LL�&%��&�!����������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������



���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ����������� ���� �������� !������ "#"""��
�!�� "#"""$%&'���������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ������
����� ���� ����
(�)*��+,�-.,/�0��1�2�3�4���	���5	�����6�
����#������7��8	�6��	�7���	9�������
�����!��	�������9���# "#"""
$%&:;<.�,.+=�>/?<).�@A><)B/.���+?/�CD<.EF/+��2��	����
��
��������	
�	5��������G��G���9��
����4�����
����H���9�
��5	����
�����G���9I���9�
�������4��	��9��
��
�
���5������G��
����6�
������#0.1���+/�.�/F�E/)��.+/��J���?K�?�1��/1�.F��/�L�)�)/L/)/+?/��+�@����������	
 �������	�� �� �������	��� �������� �� ��������	��������� ���� �����$%&M



���������	
�������������������������������� �!������������ �!�������������"����#�� �����$����!������%����&����� �'��#��%�(�%��)!��$*�+���,
���-
�.�/0�,01��
��,2�3
�4��
+�
�����
+56,,��7��2�,�
�,�8�,
��2�
�

��
�2�9:;�% ���%�<!���=><?@A�A!����=BBCDEE?��������!� ;�% ���%<!�� FG ;�% ���%A!��� ?@A�(��� FG ><?@AG
H2,�9 I0II I0II
J����

������+�K
�����L
���
���<!���!������������������%��� ������� �����������M����%��!���!��������!��!����!����!����!N�������������!N����%��!�������O���$P!����Q��!��������!��R�S����T����UAV����!��%���!N�����!�������W�����"���$ B$BBB
CDEXY,7
�Z���9�,:�*842�
8
�,����VO��!��O�������%[!��(������$6,,��7��2�,�
�,�8�,
��2�
�

��
�2�9:0 �



��������	�
���

���������� ��������� ����������� �������������  !"#���"����� $��%���������������� ��������� ����������� �������������  !"#���"����� $��%���������������&�'������'�#��#�( �)������*!����#���*����!��( �����������*������������( �+�,�-�.�/�0/1,��2+�,3��456787,.�,��9���87:798��,��5;;8.�4�<�4/+=7+:�4�<,3�1��;/<;�1�1>�.�/�0/1,�1/907,�5�6�;.��4�,3��,7,8��?=��=@��4��2+�<137;27,3�,371�5;;8765,7�+�4�<�4/+=7+:�6�+17=�<5,7�+>)'������A""������*�B������CB�������D����E������F!�����������G��!��������������"�*��������"������H�����!��!����������������!���*��'���������IC $%D*���!��%�$%���!����������������!��*��'����������J�K'������'���������"�"����'����!�K�������!���'����������IC ����"J�� �L'������'��������M!���*���#���*�'��*������IC NNNNNNNNNND���'���*��������'��"�*�����'���!������K��'���'�����������IC $%D*����J��������������J��M!���*���#�����!���"J��"��!������C������ OMH�B��� )!���������P�Q����""���K����������H �
��"� ��"�������������  !"#���"����� $��%������,R�ST U U�( �VNN�G�VVVWNVG XY� XO�ZNB��[�)� NHNN NHNN



���� ���������	
��
� �������������� �����������

����� � �

�� ����� ����!�! �"#��"$�%&'��()*+ �,�� �,���� ���!� ����!�% �"#��"$�%�'��()*+ �,�� �,���� ���%� ����!�- �"#��"$�.%�'��()*+ �,�� �,���� ���-� ����!�& �"#�$�/��+��"$�(*+ �,�� �,���� ���&� ����!�0 �"#��"$��1$�()*+ �,�� �,���� ���2� ����!�3 �"#��"$��(+)#�()*+ �,�� �,���� ���0� ����!�& �"#�45�$�()*+ �,�� �,���� ���6� ����!�2 �"#�$�5�1$ 78��(*+ �,�� �,���� ���!� ����%�% �"#��"$�%�'��)9* �,�� �,���� ��2�� ���%!�0 5�:�$"(41$)��$#$ �,�� �,���� ��0&� ���%-�� ()/1()���"$��(�+ �,�� �,���� �!!�� ���-%�� ���$��5��;���+�8 �,�� �,���� �!!!� ���-%�! ���$���5;���'5�;+; �,�� �,���� �!!%� ���-%�% ���$��5��1����'5� �,�� �,���� �!!-� ���-%�- ���$��$��(58)�'5� �,�� �,���� �!!&� ���-%�& ���$��#5(�$<$/�*$ �,�� �,���� �!!2� ���-%�2 ���$��$/�*�):";* �,�� �,���� �!!0� ���-%�0 ���$��5�*�/5(�75() �,�� �,���� �!!6� ���-%�6 ���$��5�*�$�'�75() �,�� �,��5���=���>>���?



����������	
��
��	���	
�������	�����	���	����
�������	���
���������������	������	�������	��	��
���
�����	����
���������
��
���	�������������	������ �!"!#$!"!%&���'�����������
��������(���	���	
�������������	�	�)�)�	*�	
���
��	��	������	*�	
����
����
���� �!"!%$!"!+&



 1 Revised 02-21-22 
 

 
 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM RESOLUTION 
 

FY 2024 RESOLUTION 
 

Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof. 
 
 
Applicant seeking permission to apply for Washington County dba Riverlight Transit funding, enter into 
agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation, provide the necessary assurances and the 
required local match. 
 
A motion was made by (Board Member’s Name)       and seconded by (Board Member’s Name or N/A, if not 
required)       for the adoption of the following resolution, and upon being put to a vote was duly adopted. 
 

WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes and the Governor of 
North Carolina have designated the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) as the 
agency responsible for administering federal and state public transportation funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation will apply for a grant from the US 
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and receives funds from the North 
Carolina General Assembly to provide assistance for rural public transportation projects; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of these transportation funds is to provide grant monies to local agencies for 

the provision of rural, small urban, and urban public transportation services consistent with the policy 
requirements of each funding source for planning, community and agency involvement, service design, 
service alternatives, training and conference participation, reporting and other requirements (drug and 
alcohol testing policy and program, disadvantaged business enterprise program, and fully allocated 
costs analysis); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the funds applied for may be Administrative, Operating, Planning, or Capital funds and 

will have different percentages of federal, state, and local funds. 
 
 WHEREAS, non-Community Transportation applicants may apply for funding for “purchase-of-

service” projects under the Capital Purchase of Service budget, Section 5310 program. 
 

WHEREAS, (Legal Name of Applicant)  Washington County dba Riverlight Transit hereby assures and 
certifies that it will provide the required local matching funds; that its staff has the technical capacity to 
implement and manage the project(s), prepare required reports, obtain required training, attend 
meetings and conferences; and agrees to comply with the federal and state statutes, regulations, 
executive orders, Section 5333 (b) Warranty, and all administrative requirements related to the 
applications made to and grants received from the Federal Transit Administration, as well as the 
provisions of Section 1001 of Title 18, U. S. C. 
 



 2 Revised 02-21-22 
 

WHEREAS, the applicant has or will provide all annual certifications and assurances to the  
State of North Carolina required for the project;  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the (Authorized Official’s Title)* County Manager of (Name of 
Applicant’s Governing Body)  Washington County is hereby authorized to submit grant application (s) for 
federal and state funding in response to NCDOT’s calls for projects, make the necessary assurances and 
certifications and be empowered to enter into an agreement with the NCDOT to provide rural, small 
urban, and urban public transportation services. 

I (Certifying Official’s Name)*        (Certifying Official’s Title)        do hereby certify that the above is a true 
and correct copy of an excerpt from the minutes of a meeting of the (Name of Applicant’s Governing Board)       
duly held on the       day of      ,      . 
       
 
 
Signature of Certifying Official 
 
*Note that the authorized official, certifying official, and notary public should be three separate individuals. 
 
 
Seal Subscribed and sworn to me 
(date)  

 

 
 
Notary Public * 
 
 
Printed Name and Address        
 
My commission expires 
(date)  

 

 
 
 

Affix Notary Seal Here 



 
Important – A public hearing MUST be conducted whether or not requested by the Public. 

 
  

PUBLIC HEARING RECORD 
Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination 
thereof. 
 

 
APPLICANT: Washington County 
  
DATE:  December 5, 2022 
  
PLACE: Board of Commissioners Room, 116 Adams St., Plymouth, NC 27962 
  
TIME:  6:00 PM 
  
How many BOARD MEMBERS attended the public hearing?       
  
How many members of the PUBLIC attended the public hearing?          
 
Public Attendance Surveys  
 

        (Attached)   
 
        (Offered at Public Hearing but none completed) 

 
 
I, the undersigned, representing (Legal Name of Applicant) Washington County dba 
Riverlight Transit do hereby certify to the North Carolina Department of Transportation, that a 
Public Hearing was held as indicated above and  
 
During the Public Hearing  
 

        (NO public comments)   
 
        (Public Comments were made and meeting minutes 
  will be submitted after board approval) 
              

The estimated date for board approval of meeting minutes is:       
 
                

 
 Signature or Clerk to the Board 
 
      
Printed Name and Title 
 
      
Date 

Affix Seal Here 



Voluntary Title VI Public Involvement 
 
 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 requires the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation (NC DOT) to gather statistical data regarding participants and beneficiaries of the 
agency’s federal-aid programs and activities.   NC DOT collects information on race, color, 
national origin and gender of the attendees to this public meeting to ensure the inclusion of all 
segments of the population impacted by a proposed project. 
 
 NC  DOT wishes to clarify that this information gathering process is completely voluntary and 
that you are not required to disclose the statistical data requested to participate in this meeting.  
This form is a public document used to collect data, only. 
 
The completed forms will be held on file at the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  
For Further information regarding this process please contact  the NCDOT Title VI Program at 
telephone number 919.508.1808 or email at titlevi@ncdot.gov. 
 

 
 
After completing this form, please fold and place it inside the designated box on the registration 

table. 
 

Thank you for your cooperation. 
 

 
 

Project Name:    FY2024 Grant Applications         Date:  12/5/2022 
Meeting Location:  Board of Commissioners Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC 27962 
Name (please print) 
 
 
 

Gender: 
 

  Male       Female 

General ethnic identification categories (check one) 
  Caucasian   Hispanic American   American Indian/Alaskan Native 
  African American   Asian/Pacific Islander Other:  ________________________ 

Color:   National Origin: 

mailto:titlevi@ncdot.gov


FY 2024 LOCAL SHARE CERTIFICATION FOR FUNDING  
 

Washington County dba Riverlight Transit 
(Legal Name of Applicant) 

 
Requested Funding Amounts 
 

Project     Total Amount   Local Share** 
5311 Administrative      $ 100,731   $ 15,110 (15%) 
5311 Operating (No State Match)      $         $       (50%) 
5310 Operating (No State Match)     $         $       (50%) 

     5307 Operating    $           $       (50%)  
    5307 Planning  $           $       (10%)  
    Combined Capital    $ 271,800     $ 27,180 (10%)  

Mobility Management       $         $       (50%) 
5310 Capital Purchase of Service      $         $       (10%) 
__________________       $         $       (__%) 
__________________       $         $       (__%) 
__________________       $         $       (__%) 
 
Funding programs covered are 5311, 5310, 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities, 5307 (Small fixed 
route, regional, and consolidated urban-rural systems)                               

                 
      TOTAL                                                         $ 372,531                                $ 42,290 

       Total Funding Requests      Total Local Share 
 
**NOTE: Applicants should be prepared for the entire Local Share amount in the event State 
funding is not available. 
 
The Local Share is available from the following sources: 
 
    Source of Funds      Apply to Grant                Amount  

 General Funds              $ 42,290 
 
                                         $       
 
                                          $       
 
                                           $       
 
                                           $       
 

                                         $       



FY 2024 Local Share Certificate (page 2) 
 

 
                                         $       

 
                                           $       

 
 

TOTAL                                                    $ 42,290 
 
** Fare box revenue is not an applicable source for local share funding 
 
 
 
 
I, the undersigned representing (Legal Name of Applicant) Washington County dba Riverlight 
Transit do hereby certify to the North Carolina Department of Transportation, that the required 
local funds for the FY2024 Community Transportation Program and 5307 Governors 
Apportionment will be available as of July 1, 2023, which has a period of performance of July 1, 
2023 – June 30, 2024. 
 

_________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Official 
 
      
Type Name and Title of Authorized Official 
 
      
Date 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:     Public Hearing:  Amendment to Manufactured Home Ordinance, Mr. 

Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety/Inspections Director 
a)  Approval of Amendment 

  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
A public hearing is required before an amendment can be made to an Ordinance.  Mr. 
Allen Pittman, Planning/Safety/Inspections Director will speak to the Board and discuss 
the recommendation by the Planning Board for the amendments to the County’s 
Manufactured Home Ordinance.   See attached. (Changes are in red on the document.) 
 

a) Mr. Pittman will then be asking for a motion to approve the amendment to the 
Manufactured Home Ordinance. 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE MOBILE HOMES, TRAVEL TRAILERS, MOBILE 
HOME PARKS AND TRAVEL TRAILER PARKS IN  

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Article I.  In General      Page  3 
 

      Section 1- Authority and Jurisdiction 
         Section 2- Title and Purpose      
       Section 3- Definitions      
 

Article II.  Regulations and Permits    Page  5 
   Section 1- Procedures      

 
Article III.  Application for Mobile Home or Travel 

                   Trailer Park Construction     Page  6 
      Section 1- Application Process     
      Section 2- Contents of Park Plan     
      Section 3- Review Process 
       Section 4- Action       
       Section 5- Issuance of a  Construction Permit   
 
 

Article IV.  Design Standards and Specifications for 
                    Mobile Home Parks     Page  9 
      Section 1- Suitability of Land   
     Section 2- Site Development      
       Section 3 -Water, Sewage Disposal, Electrical and 
                                 Refuse Collection    
       Section 4- Management      
 

Article V.  Specifications for Travel Trailer Parks  Page 11 
       Section 1- Site Suitability      
     Section 2- Site Development      
      Section 3- Sanitary Facilities, Water Supply, Sewage 
                        Disposal, Garbage collection & Utilities   
    Section 4- Park Expansion      
 

Article VI.  Mobile Home and Travel Trailer Register Page 13 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
i 

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE MOBILE HOMES, TRAVEL TRAILERS, MOBILE 
HOME PARKS AND TRAVEL TRAILER PARKS IN  

WASHINGTON COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Article VII.  Inspection     Page 14 
 

Article VIII.  Legal Provisions     Page 14 
      Section 1- Provisions of Ordinance Declared to be 
                                Minimum Requirements     
      Section 2- Remedies       
      Section 3- Amendments      
              Section 4- Separability Clause     
              Section 5- Permit Choice     
              Section 6- Effective Date      
 

Appendix 1 – Certificates to be Applied to Face of Plat Page 17 
       



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 DRAFT FOR REVISION  

AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE MOBILE HOMES, TRAVEL TRAILERS, MOBILE 
HOME PARKS AND TRAVEL TRAILER PARKS IN WASHINGTON COUNTY,       

NORTH CAROLINA 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

ARTICLE I– IN GENERAL 

SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY AND JURISDICTION 

Washington County hereby exercises its authority to regulate mobile home and travel trailer parks 
under Article VI of Chapter 153A 160D of the General Statutes of North Carolina. 

This Ordinance shall govern: (1) each and every new mobile home park and travel trailer park and any 
expansion of any existing mobile home park or travel trailer park, and (2) the placing, location, or setting 
up of any mobile home or travel trailer within the jurisdiction of Washington County and any 
municipality requesting the enforcement of this Ordinance within their Jurisdiction of Government body 
resolution. (3) All existing mobile home and travel trailer parks in Washington County shall be subject to 
Sections 3, and 4 of Article IV; Section 3 of Article V; Article VII; Article VIII of this Ordinance.  These 
provisions apply whether or not a mobile home or travel trailer park desires to expand its capacity.  This 
Ordinance is to be applied in harmony with the North Carolina State Building Code as it applies to 
mobile homes. 

 

SECTION 2.  TITLE AND PURPOSE 

This Ordinance may be cited as the Washington County Mobile Home and Travel Trailer Ordinance. 

The purposes for which this Ordinance is established are:  (1) to regulate the location, setting up, 
anchoring and use of mobile homes and travel trailers within Washington County; (2) to regulate the 
development of mobile home and travel trailer parks within Washington County; and (3) to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Washington County in general and the residents 
and occupants of mobile home and travel trailer parks in particular. 

SECTION 3.  DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, certain terms and works used herein shall be defined and interpreted 
as follows: 

A. Building Permit – a permit issued by the Building Inspector or his designee upon receipt of an 
application, site plan, and receipt of a permit fee when locating a mobile home within the 
Jurisdiction of Washington County.  This permit contains information concerning the mobile 
home and shall be issued prior to any inspections. 
 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

B. Construction Permit – a permit issued by the Director of Planning or his designee pursuant to 
this Ordinance authorizing a developer to construct or expand a mobile home or travel trailer 
park.  This permit shall be issued only upon request by a letter signed by the owner or developer 
of the mobile home or travel trailer park 
 

C. Developer – any person, firm, trust, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, association or 
corporation or any combination of such entities engaged in the development of proposed 
development of a mobile home or travel trailer park. 
 

D. Interior Transportation Rights of Way – streets within a mobile home or travel trailer park which 
serve only the park residents and are not designed for through traffic 
 

E. Mobile Home – A detached residential dwelling unit designed for transportation after 
fabrication upon the streets or highways on its own wheels.  A travel trailer is not to be 
considered a mobile home.  A modular home is not to be considered a mobile home for 
purposes of location in a mobile home park 
 

F. Mobile Home Park – any site or tract in single ownership on which more than two mobile homes 
are located and/or occupied on which facilities are provided for more than two mobile homes, 
whether or not a charge is made for the use of the mobile home or the use of the site or tract. 
 

G. Mobile Home Space – a plot of land within a mobile home park designed for the 
accommodation of one mobile home. 
 

H. Natural or Artificial Barrier – any river, pond, canal, roadway, levee, embankment, fence, hedge, 
tree row, or similar obstruction which limits access and/or visibility. 
 
 
Deleted:  Operating license – a license issued by the Director of Public Works and Planning or his 
designee to the developer, owner, or operator of mobile home or travel trailer park which 
confirms to the requirements of this Ordinance allowing for the operation of said park.  No 
operating license shall be issued until the mobile home park or travel trailer park is fully 
completed according to the plan submitted to the Director of Public Works and Planning 
 

I. Plat – a map or plan delineating the division of a mobile home or travel trailer park into 
individual tracts on which mobile homes or travel trailers will be placed.  The word  “plat” shall 
also include the terms map, plot, and plan 
 
 

J. Structural Additions – any roofed, canopied, or enclosed porch, room or structure which is used 
in connection with the mobile home.  A concrete slab, deck, or ramp with no roof shall not be 
considered a structural addition for the purposes of this Ordinance 
 
 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

K. Travel Trailer - a wheeled, vehicular, portable structure built on a chassis which is designed to be 
used as travel and/or recreational purposes.  This definition is intended to include structures 
mounted on auto or truck bodies that are referred to as campers or motor homes  
 
 

L. Travel Trailer Park – Any site or tract of land in single ownership upon which is located, or upon 
which facilities are provided for more than two (2) travel trailers regardless of whether or not  a 
rent is charged for the privilege of locating or occupying a site on the tract 
 
 

M. Travel Trailer Space – a plot of land within a travel trailer park for the accommodation of one (1) 
travel trailer 
 
 

ARTICLE II –REGULATIONS AND PERMITS FOR LOCATING MOBILE HOMES 
 

SECTION 1.  PROCEDURE 

A.  No person shall locate, relocate or cause to be located or relocated any mobile home 
intended for use as a dwelling, other than one in a mobile home park with an approved 
sewage disposal system, or in an area served by a public or community sewage disposal 
system without first obtaining an improvement permit from the Washington County Health 
Department.  The Washington County Health Department will issue the permit after making 
a determination that a septic tank or other ground absorption sewage disposal system can 
be installed in accordance with local and state health regulations. 
 
After the improvements permit has been issued and the work has been completed on the 
ground absorption sewage disposal system, the Washington County Health Department will 
make a final inspection.  If it finds that the system has been properly installed, it will issue a 
certificate of completion.  A mobile home may not lawfully be occupied until this certificate 
has been issued. 
 

B.  Any person locating or relocating a mobile home in Washington County must secure a 
building permit.  The Washington County Building Inspector shall issue a building permit 
upon receipt of an application which includes the (1) name and mailing address of the 
owner; (2) description of the mobile home to include the name of the manufacturer; year of 
construction, and wind zone; and (3) the proposed location of the mobile home.   
 
Dealers of mobile homes who place mobile homes upon their sales lot are exempt from this 
requirement. 
 
The building inspector shall inspect each mobile home to determine compliance with the 
following: 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

1.  All mobile homes shall be anchored in a manner approved by the State of North Carolina 
Regulations for Mobile Homes, published and amended by the North Carolina Department of 
Insurance.  The anchoring shall be completed within 6 months of the issuance of the building 
permit.  In no event shall electricity be approved to the structure prior to completion of tie 
down and approved inspection of electrical, plumbing, and mechanical systems as well as 
underpinning.  Compliance with the flood plain certification must also be approved if home is 
located in a flood zone. 

2. All mobile home skirting (UNDERPINNING) shall be of a non-combustible, corrosive resistant 
material at least 29 gauge metal, concrete form board, or masonry (effective 10-7-2013), from 
the bottom of the unit to the ground.  Such skirting shall contain an access door measuring not 
less than eighteen (18) inches by twenty-four (24) inches. 

3. All mobile homes shall be installed according to the mobile home manufacturers printed 
instructions and all applicable state and federal regulations.  The mobile home manufacturer’s 
instructions should be designed by a licensed architect or engineer.  Instructions should be 
designed by a licensed architect or engineer.  Instructions shall specify the location and required 
stabilizing devices (tie-downs, piers, blockings, etc.) on which the design of the fastening devices 
attached to the home is based.  If such instructions do not exist, the standards included in the 
“State of North Carolina Regulations for Mobile Homes” shall apply. 

4. Compliance with the FEMA Floodplain set-up based on an elevation certificate prepared by a 
registered surveyor, is required if the location is determined to be in a flood plain after a site 
plan review by the Planning Director.  The after-construction survey must be completed and 
approved by the Floodplain Administrator prior to allowing electricity to be supplied. 
 
(C)It shall be unlawful for an individual, partnership, firm or corporation to allow any electric 
current for use in any mobile home to be turned on or to continue to furnish electricity for use 
in such mobile home without having first ascertaining that a label of compliance is permanently 
attached to said mobile home, or that certificate of compliance has been issued. 
 
If electricity was furnished prior to September 1, 1971, or if the owner or predecessor in title has 
obtained a certificate of title for the mobile home in question prior to September 1, 2971; or the 
owner has satisfactory evidence on file with the NC Department of Motor Vehicles that the 
mobile home in question was manufactured prior to September 1, 1971, this section shall not 
apply and electricity may be provided. 

Combined paragraphs in C as follows: 

C.  It shall be unlawful for an individual, partnership, firm or corporation to allow any electric 
current for use in any mobile home to be turned on or to continue to furnish electricity for 
use in such mobile home without having first ascertaining that a label of compliance is 
attached to said mobile home, unless owner has satisfactory evidence on file with the North 
Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles that the home was manufactured prior to 
September 1, 1971. 

 

 



 

7 | P a g e  
 

ARTICLE III – APPLICATION FOR MOBILE HOME OR TRAVEL TRAILER PARK CONSTRUCTION PERMIT 

 

SECTION 1.  APPLICATION PROCESS 

 

A.  No person shall construct or make any addition to a mobile home or travel trailer park that 
alters the number of sites within the park or affects the facilities required therein until they 
first secure a permit authorizing such construction or additions.   The construction or 
addition shall be in accordance with a copy of the site plans, and construction specifications 
that must be submitted with the application for a construction and/or building permit. 

B. The application for a mobile home or travel trailer park construction permit along with one 
reproducible copy of a plat delineating the proposed park layout shall be filed with the 
Washington County Planning Department at least ten (10) work days prior to the regular 
meeting of the Washington County Planning Board. The plat will be reviewed by the 
Planning Board at their regularly scheduled meeting.  The plat should be drawn consistent 
with the North Carolina Uniform Map Law and the additional requirements (e.g. scale) 
contained herein.  See the Appendix for certificates which must be attached to the plat. 

C. Any plat of a new mobile home park shall be signed by a registered surveyor or engineer, 
and any expansion of an existing mobile home park must also be represented on a plat 
bearing the signature of a registered surveyor or engineer and the plat shall be recorded in 
the Register of Deeds office prior to obtaining a construction permit. 

D. The proposed plat shall be submitted by the Director of Public Works and Planning to the 
following for their comments prior to submittal to the Planning Board:  Building Inspector, 
Washington County Health Department, the District Highway Engineer, the State Health 
Officials when applicable, and any other agencies deemed necessary.  If comments have not 
been received within ten (10) days, the Planning Board shall consider the plat acceptable 
unless an extension of time is agreed upon. 
 

SECTION 2.  CONTENTS OF PARK PLAN 
 

A.  The plat shall be drawn at a scale not smaller than one (1) inch to one hundred (100) feet.  
The plat shall contain the following information – for any and all park sizes: 
1.  Name of proposed park 
2.  General location map with township, municipality, county and state of proposed park 
3.  Name, address, and phone number of developer 
4.  Scale, represented numerically and graphically 
5.  Date of plat preparation and name of surveyor or engineer 
6.  Show adjacent properties noting the legal owner’s name and the location of existing 

streets 
7.  Dimensions and bearings of exterior property lines of proposed park 
8.  Topographic features, including two horizontal and vertical concrete monuments 
9.  Proposed streets showing horizontal alignment, and unique name or number 
10.  Mobile home spaces well defined and sufficient for delineation on the ground. 



 

8 | P a g e  
 

11.  Travel trailer spaces well defined and dimensioned 
12.  Proposed surface water drainage plan 
13.  Location of existing and proposed permanent structures 
14.  Location, purpose, and dimensions of areas to be used for purposes other than for   

mobile home or travel trailer sites. 
15.  Location and intensity of area lights and evidence that a power company will provide 

service to the park.  All parks are required to have at least one area light. 
16.  Plans for water supply and sewage disposal system, showing the location, size, and the 

number of hookups to each system to comply with the Laws and Rules for Sanitary 
Sewage Collection Treatment and Disposal - Section 190D of the North Carolina 
Administrative Code and the standard of the Washington County Waterworks.   

17.  Designation of areas subject to flooding from Flood Insurance Rate Maps located in the 
Planning Department 

18.  A certificate applied to the plat by the Coastal Area Management Act Permit Officer 
stating whether any portion or the entirety of a park is in a designated area of 
Environmental Concern and whether appropriate CAMA permits have been acquired 

19.  Any other information considered by either the developer, the Director of Public Works 
and Planning, the  Director of Public Works, or the Planning Board to be pertinent to the 
application 

20.  The certificates shown on Appendix #1 must be made a part of the plat. 
21.  Show screening and/or fencing plan details on the plat 
22.   Any proposed solid waste containers must be depicted on the plat 
23.  When a plot is for a park expansion, it must show the existing area as well as the 

proposed addition 
24.  A list of any structural additions that may be allowed on site that may meet setbacks 

SECTION 3.  REVIEW PROCESS 

A.  All comments, the proposed plan, and any additional information shall be presented to 
the Planning Board by the Director of Public Works and Planning at their regularly 
scheduled monthly meeting 

 
B. The Washington County Planning Board shall review the proposed park plan in 

accordance with the plat requirements and design standards contained in this 
Ordinance, to the greatest extent feasible.  The Planning Board shall review and take 
action on park plat with complete supporting information within forty-five (45) days 

 
C. Applications and plats for mobile home and travel trailer park expansions of up to six (6) 

spaces, may be approved administratively by the Director of Planning under the 
following terms and conditions: 

1.  The Director of Public Works and Planning will notify the Planning Board Chair upon 
receipt of all minor expansion plats within 72 hours of receipt  

2. The Director of Planning shall not approve any plats in less than five (5) working days 



 

9 | P a g e  
 

3. In the event If the Chairman of the Planning Board determines that the minor plat is so 
complex that full Board review is necessary, the plat will be placed on the agenda for 
the next regularly scheduled Planning Board meeting. 

4.  Any minor plats originally rejected by the Director of Public Works and Planning may be 
appealed to the full Board for consideration 

5.  The Director of Public Works and Planning may approve only one minor expansion plat 
for any one mobile home or travel trailer park during a 24 month period. 
 

6.  Variances to this ordinance may be requested in writing to the Board of Commissioners, 
acting as the Board of Adjustments, and presented to the Clerk of the Board.  A copy 
must also be presented to the Planning Director.  Any request for a variance shall be 
considered and granted only to the extent that is absolutely necessary due to 
topographical issues, and not to an extent that would violate the intent of this 
Ordinance. 

 
 

SECTION 4:  ACTION 
 

A.  After considering all available information, the Planning Board shall approve, approve with 
conditions (conditionally), or disapprove the plat. 
1.  If approved conditionally (with conditions), the conditions and reasons thereof shall be 

stated in writing to the developer, and the Planning Board may require the developer to 
submit a revised plat. 

2.  If the Planning Board should disapprove the plat, the reasons for such action shall be 
stated in writing and transmitted to the developer.  If the plat is disapproved, the 
applicant may make such changes as will bring the plat into compliance with this 
Ordinance and resubmit it to the Planning Board.  The developer may appeal the 
Planning Board’s decision to the Board of Adjustment in writing, within thirty days from 
the date of the Planning Board’s action.  This appeal should be made with notice to the 
Clerk to the Board of Commissioners and the Director of Planning.   

3.  If approved, the developer may proceed with the installation of improvements in 
accordance with the approved plat pursuant to the issuance of a construction permit by 
the Building Inspector. 

 

SECTION 5.  ISSUANCE OF A CONSTRUCTION PERMIT 

A.  After approval of a construction permit application by the Planning Board or the Board of 
Adjustments, the Building INSPECTOR shall promptly issue a construction permit in 
accordance with the instructions of the Planning Board or the Board of Adjustments 
 

B.  During construction, all field work shall be in accordance with the approved plans.  It shall 
be the responsibility of the developer to inform the Building Inspector of the progress of 
field work so that timely inspections can be made 

 



 

10 | P a g e  
 

C.  When a developer has completed the construction of a park pursuant to a construction 
permit in accordance with this Ordinance, they shall apply to the Director of Public Works 
and Planning for an Operating License, which is required before a developer shall lease or 
rent spaces in the park.  The Director of Public Works and Planning shall issue an Operating 
License, if the park conforms to the application and plans approved by the Planning Board or 
County Commissioners and complies with other applicable laws SECTION DELETED 
 

ARTICLE IV – DESIGN STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR MOBILE HOME PARKS 
 

SECTION 1.  SUITABILITY OF LAND 

Land subject to flooding, improper drainage, erosion, or that is for topographic reasons unsuitable 
for residential use as determined by the Planning Board, shall not be developed for mobile home 
parks if such use would continue or increase the danger to health, safety, or property, unless the 
hazards can be corrected and/or avoided prior to construction.  However, tracts that can meet 
the requirements of the National Flood Insurance Ordinance may be developed consistent with 
the requirements of this Ordinance and the Washington County Flood Ordinance and the written 
approval of a representative of the NC Department of Human Resources, Division of Health and 
Human Services. 

Areas which have been used for the disposal of waste, including solid, liquid, or chemical waste, 
shall not be developed as a mobile home park. 

 

SECTION 2.  SITE DEVELOPMENT (re-worded to simplify and make items more clear; less 
redundant; no information was removed, but some appears in combination with like information) 

A. The amount of land for each mobile home space served by an individual well and septic tank 
shall be determined by the Washington County Health Department after an investigation of 
soil conditions.  Parks to be served by public water and sewage disposal systems shall have 
adequate area in each space to provide for the mobile home, resident vehicles and required 
setbacks.  

 
B. Each mobile home space shall contain a minimum of 12,000   7,000 square feet and have 

iron markers placed at each corner.  Lots should be marked and identified in a logical 
sequence with reflective numbers or letters at least 4 inches high and 2 inches wide. 

 
C. There shall be at least fifteen (15) feet clearance between mobile homes and side lot lines. 

No mobile homes shall be located closer than thirty-five (35) feet an exterior boundary line 
of the park and no closer than fifteen (15) feet to the edge of any interior transportation 
right-of-way 

 
D. Rights-of-way and street design requirements shall be as per “P” set out below and cross 

section shown in appendix II   follow: 
 



 

11 | P a g e  
 

1. Interior roads and parks of less than fourteen (14) spaces shall be all weather roads 
constructed of gravel packed to a depth of three inches and graded with proper 
drainage consistent with the NC Department of Transportation standards for unpaved 
roads. (FROM ORIGINAL Document ITEM P1) 

2. In parks of fourteen (14) or more spaces, the minimum right-of-way and pavement 
widths, minimum thickness of base and surface course to be used shall meet the 
required pavement designs as described in the NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION MINIMUM CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS FOR SUBDIVISION ROADS. 
(FROM ORIGINAL DOCUMENT ITEM P2) 

3. Intersection with a public roadway shall be designed to facilitate free movement of 
traffic, and reviewed and approved on the application plat by the NC Department of 
Transportation, Division of Highways. (moved from F in original document ) 
 

E. Dead end streets shall not serve more than fourteen (14) lots and the closed end shall have 
a cul-de-sac bulb with not less than a 50 foot radius ninety-six (96) foot diameter in the right 
of way (per NCDOT standard) and thirty-five (35) foot radius in the travel path to allow for 
emergency vehicle operations and turnaround. (Moved from I in original document) 

F. Parking space sufficient to accommodate at least two (2) automobiles shall be required for 
each mobile home space.  The parking area shall have a stone or gravel base with a 
minimum of three (3) inches of compacted thickness. (FROM ORIGINAL ITEM H) 

G. The area of the mobile home space shall be improved to provide an adequate foundation 
for the placement of the mobile homes and provide anchors and tie-down facilities in every 
mobile home space to comply with Article III. (Moved from K in original) 

H. Parks must provide sufficient screening, in the form of natural growth or fencing to shield 
the park from adverse effects of adjacent public roadways, industrial or commercial use, or 
other incompatible development.  All areas that may be considered unsafe for children must 
be fenced with a solid fence of least five (5) feet in height. (COMBINED FROM ORIGINAL I 
and M) 

I. The park shall be graded and seeded to prevent ponding or accumulation of water according 
to the Department of Natural Resources and Community Development erosion and 
sedimentation plan.  Any uninhabited lots shall be maintained and kept clear of debris. 
(MOVED FROM ORIGINAL ITEM J and N) 

J. Identification signs for mobile home or travel trailer parks shall not exceed four (4) by eight 
(8) feet at the entrance of the park and placed in compliance with the Department of 
Transportation Standards.  Signs must be approved and permitted by the Planning Director 
and the Building Inspector.  (MOVED FROM ORIGINAL ITEM L) 

K.  In all mobile home parks accommodating or designed to accommodate twenty-five sixteen 
(16) or more mobile homes, there shall be one or more recreation areas of at least 12,000 
square feet which are easily accessible to all park residents. Recreation areas shall be 
located free of traffic hazards and shall not abut a roadway for a distance of at least 30 
thirty-five (35) feet. The area shall be relatively flat, well drained and usable suitable for 
recreation. (MOVED FROM ORIGINAL ITEM G) 
(ORIGINAL ITEM O moved to Section 3-C – Refuse Collection for clarity) 
 



 

12 | P a g e  
 

 
SECTION 3.  WATER SUPPLY, SEWAGE DISPOSAL,  ELECTRICAL AND REFUSE COLLECTION FACILITIES 
 

A.  Each mobile home space shall be equipped with plumbing and electrical connections for 
sufficient capacity.  Electrical connections and wiring shall be in accordance with the 
National Electric Code as amended from time to time. 

B. Each mobile home space shall be provided with and shall be connected to a sewage disposal 
and water supply system as approved by the Washington County Health Department and 
Washington County Utilities. 

C. Parks with more than fifteen (15) spaces shall provide space for a solid waste container site 
in accordance with the Department of Transportation regulations.  This shall be at no cost to 
the County, and shall be shown on the original plat for the park.  The mobile home or travel 
trailer park owner is responsible for all solid waste disposal fees generated by the park 
residents.  (MOVED FROM ORIGINAL DOCUMENT SECTION 2, Item O) 
 The park owner of any size shall be responsible for refuse collection where suitable 
collection is not available from governmental agencies. 
 
SECTION 4  STRUCTURAL ADDITIONS 

All structural additions to mobile homes other than those which are built into the unit and designed to 
fold out or extend from it shall be erected only after a building permit shall have been obtained and 
such additions shall conform to all volumes of the North Carolina Building Code and all other existing 
regulations where applicable, or shall meet the standards of special regulations adopted with respect to 
such additions.  The building permit shall specify whether such structural additions may remain 
permanently, or must be removed when the mobile home is removed.  The above listed structures must 
comply with setback requirements of Section 2-D 

The allowance of any type of structural additions must be approved by the Planning Board along with 
the original site plan and design by the owner/developer.  If allowed by the original design plan within 
the park, the park owner shall sign an agreement to be brought, along with information required to 
obtain a building permit which will conform to all volumes of the North Carolina Building Code.  Any 
such structure shall meet the setback requirements of Section 2-C. 

 
 SECTION 5  MANAGEMENT 

In each mobile home park, the owner or authorized agent shall be in charge of keeping the mobile home 
park, its facilities, and equipment in good repair and in clean, orderly, safe and sanitary condition so as 
not to create a public nuisance at all times.  Specifically the responsible person shall, among other 
things, do the following: 

A.  Maintain grounds, storage areas, buildings, and structures so as to minimize or prevent insect 
and rodent harborage and infestation. 

B. Maintain recreational areas and buffer areas as to prevent the harborage of fleas and ticks, 
chiggers, and/or noxious weeds considered health hazards. 



 

13 | P a g e  
 

C. Make contacts with the proper authorities, the Animal Control Officer when stray dogs or cats 
begin to hang around the park causing a health hazard that should be stopped before someone 
is injured 

D. The mobile home park owner will be responsible for all solid waste disposal fees for waste 
generated in the mobile home park. 

 

ARTICLE V – SPECIFICATIONS FOR TRAVEL TRAILER PARKS 

SECTION 1:  SITE SUITABILITY 

Land subject to flooding, improper drainage, erosion, or that is for the topographic reason unsuitable for 
recreational use as determined by the Planning Board shall not be developed for travel trailer parks.  If 
such use would continue or increase the danger to health, safety, or property, unless the hazards can be 
and are corrected or avoided.  However, the Planning Board in carrying out this directive shall not solely 
on the grounds of flood danger, prohibit travel trailer park development or use, if a future County Flood 
Plain Ordinance allows such development or use above the 100 year flood elevation.  An adopted Flood 
Plain Ordinance shall control in the event of any inconsistencies with other County Ordinances 

A complete site plan shall be reviewed by the Planning Director along with the Planning Board to 
determine whether the site is suitable in accordance with the current Floodplain Development Permit 
adopted by the Washington County Commissioners and the Washington County Flood Ordinance and 
with Erosion Control and Sedimentation, Drainage, and Flooding considerations.  Washington County 
zoning areas will be considered. 

Areas which have ever been used for the disposal of waste, including solid, liquid, or chemical waste, 
shall not be developed as a travel trailer park. 

SECTION 2.  SITE DEVELOPMENT 

A.  Every travel trailer space shall contain at least 1250  two thousand (2,000) square feet 
B.  There shall be a minimum distance of fifteen (15) feet between each travel trailer 
C. Parking sufficient to accommodate one motor vehicle and one travel trailer shall be 

constructed within each space.  No more than one (1) camping vehicle may be parked on 
each space. Site plan shall specify whether sites are drive through or back-in and have 
sufficient driveway to accommodate safe vehicle movement. 

D. Set-back from public streets shall be a minimum of thirty-five (35) feet from the right-of-way 
E. Grading shall prevent water from ponding or accumulating within the park, and shall be a 

part of the plat/plan presented to the Planning Director.  Each space shall have access by 
way of an interior street to the public road. These all-weather roads shall have a minimum 
width of thirty-five (35) feet.  (ORIGINAL ITEMS E,F,G are combined) 

F. Proper drainage ditches with sloped and seeded banks shall be developed into the park 
(ORIGINAL H) 

G. Cul-de-sacs and dead end roads shall not exceed one thousand (1,000) feet in length 
measured from the entrance to the center of the turnaround, with a bulb diameter of sixty  
ninety-six (96) feet to allow for emergency vehicles,  All intersections of a public roadway 



 

14 | P a g e  
 

shall be approved by the Division of Highways, Department of Transportation, before any 
permits are issued.(ORIGINAL ITEM I and J) 

H. Each park shall have a central structure that will provide separate toilet facilities  for both 
sexes  as required by current codes and laws.  Vending machines for park residents may also 
be housed in this structure or in a shelter near the recreation area.  No exterior advertising 
is allowed.  (ORIGINAL K) 

I. Swimming pools or bathing areas must be installed, altered, improved, or used only when 
found to be in compliance with the Washington County Health Department, and permits 
issued and work inspected by the Washington County Building Inspector.  (Original L) 

J. Identification signs for travel trailer parks shall not exceed four (4) feet by eight (8) feet at 
the entrance of the park, in accordance with the Washington County Sign Ordinance. 
(ORIGINAL M) 

SECTION 3: SANITARY FACILITIES, WATER SUPPLY, SEWAGE DISPOSAL,  GARBAGE 
       COLLECTION AND UTILITIES       

                        
A. Sanitary Facilities 

1. All toilet, shower, lavatory, and laundry facilities shall be provided and maintained in a 
clean and sanitary condition and kept in good repair at all times.  They shall be safely 
and adequately lighted.  Facilities shall be easily accessible for wheelchair and other 
physical impairments to comply with all State and County Health regulations. 

2. All buildings shall be constructed in accordance with the North Carolina State Building 
Code, as it is amended from time to time, using the current code at the time of permit 
issue. 
 

B.  Water Supply 
A safe, adequate, and conveniently located water supply must be provided for each park.  
No water supply shall be installed, altered, or used without the approval of the Washington 
County Utilities and Washington County Health Department. 
 

C.  Sewage Disposal 
1.  Sewage dumping stations shall be designed and approved by the Washington County 

Health Department.  Each park shall be provided at least one (1) sewage dumping 
station. 

2. No method of sewage disposal shall be installed, altered, or used without the approval 
of the Washington County Health Department.  All sewage waste, if not self-contained 
within the camper unit, including waste from toilets, showers, bathtubs, lavatories, 
wash basins, sinks, and water using appliances not herein mentioned, shall be piped into 
an approved sewage disposal system. 
 

D.  Garbage and Refuse Disposal 
 
1. The park owner is responsible for refuse collection.  Garbage cans with lids should be 

provided for each space, and located no further than 50 feet away from any trailer 
space.  Racks or platforms shall be provided to store containers to prevent tipping and 



 

15 | P a g e  
 

spillage.  No garbage shall be left outside a container. (ITEM 1 and 4 from ORIGINAL 
COMBINED) 

2. Storage, collection, and disposal of refuse shall be managed as not to create health 
hazards, rodent harborage, insect breeding areas, accidents, fire hazards, or air 
pollution, or any other situation to cause a public nuisance. (ITEM 2 and 3 from 
ORIGINAL COMBINED) 
 

E. Where electrical service is used, The installation and use of electrical service shall comply 
with all applicable codes in existence at the time of installation.  The Washington County 
Electrical/Building Inspector shall approve all installation and use, if the use should be 
different that when installed. 
 

F. Each park shall provide recreation areas to serve the needs of the anticipated user a well-
drained recreation area on at least one-half acre (1/2) per every fifteen (15) camper spaces.  
The park owner is responsible for the development and upkeep of this area at all times. 

 
G. IT shall be unlawful for a person to park or store a mobile home in a travel trailer park. Only 

one (1) mobile home, or constructed building shall be allowed within a travel trailer park to 
be used as an office or the residence of persons responsible for the operation and 
maintenance of the travel trailer park.  Accessory buildings used for storage, recreation, and 
maintenance may be allowed as shown and approved from the original plat. 

 
SECTION 4.  PARK EXPANSION 
 
When expansion of the existing park is proposed, the developer shall provide the Planning Director, for 
the review of the Planning Board, with an improvement plan showing the existing area and the 
proposed addition, to include a completed site plan as outlined in the Permitting section of this 
ordinance, along with payment of the fee as set by the Washington County Board of Commissioners. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI – MOBILE HOME AND TRAVEL TRAILER PARK REGISTER 
 
It shall be the duty of the owner or operator of a mobile home and /or travel trailer park to keep an 
accurate register containing a record of all occupants and owners of mobile homes or travel trailers 
located within their park.  The register shall be submitted to the County Tax Supervisor’s Office in 
accordance with G.S. 105-316, and shall be available for inspection at all times by the County Building 
Inspection Department, the County Health Department, and other government agencies and officials 
authorized by the Board of Commissioners.  The registry shall be maintained for a period of three years 
by the County Tax Office. 
(PER SHERRI, this is still applicable, the GS is correct) 
 

ARTICLE VII – INSPECTION 
 



 

16 | P a g e  
 

The Washington County Health Department and the Washington County Building Inspector are hereby 
authorized and directed to make such inspections as are necessary to determine satisfactory compliance 
with this ordinance upon consent of the park operator.  However, such inspections may take place 
without the consent of the operator by the use of “Administrative Search and Inspections Warrants” in 
compliance with applicable NC Statutes.  It shall be the duty of the owners or occupants of mobile home 
and travel trailer parks to give these agencies free access to the park premises at reasonable times for 
the purpose of inspection. 
 

DELETE:    ARTICLE VIII  LOSS OF OPERATING LICENSE   DELETE 
 
Any mobile home park or travel trailer park that is found to be in a violation of this Ordinance will cease entering 
into new leases.  A violation of this Ordinance’s provisions constitutes a misdemeanor, punishable under state law 
G.S. 14-4 by a fine of up to $50.00 or imprisonment for up to 30 days.  Violators are also subject to civil penalties as 
set out in Section 2 of Article IX of this Ordinance when applicable and any redress for violations in any manner 
authorized by that general law.   
The notice of violation shall be sent to the park operator by certified or registered mail specifying what violations 
have been found, what corrective result in revocation of the operating license.  Unless an inspection shows the 
violation to have been corrected or to satisfactorily be in the process of completion no later than 30 days after 
notice of permit violation is given a notice  a notice of violation hearing shall be sent to the offending party by 
certified or registered mail.  The revocation hearing notice shall indicate the counsel and that the hearing shall be 
held before the Washington County Board of Commissioners.  At the hearing, the burden of proof shall be on the 
Building Inspector, who may also be represented by counsel, evidence shall be presented and cross examinations 
shall be allowed.  The decision of the Board shall be stated in writing and supported by a statement of its finding of 
facts and conclusions.  In the event that the park is found to be in violation, the permit for all spaces shall be 
revoked.  If the owner later wished to correct the violation, he shall be required to re-submit his mobile home park 
plan in compliance with this Ordinance in Order to get an operating license. 
 

ARTICLE VIII – LEGAL PROVISIONS 
 

SECTION 1.  PROVISIONS OF ORDINANCE DECLARED TO BE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS 
 
The provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to be minimum requirements, adopted for the promotion 
of the public health, safety and general welfare.  Wherever the requirements of this Ordinance are at a 
variance with the requirements of any other lawfully adopted regulations.  The most restrictive or that 
imposing the higher standards shall govern. 

 
SECTION 2.  Pursuant to N.C. G. S. 153A-123 violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or failure to 
comply with any of its requirements (including violations of conditions and safeguards established in 
connection with allowable deviations) shall subject the violator to a civil penalty.  Nothing herein 
contained shall prevent Washington County from taking such other lawful action, including an action for 
injunctions and/or orders of abatement as are necessary to prevent or remedy any violation. 
 
SECTION 3.  AMENDMENTS 
 
The Planning Board shall consider and make recommendations to the Washington County 
Commissioners concerning each proposed amendment.   No amendment shall be adopted by the 



 

17 | P a g e  
 

Washington County Commissioners until after a public notice and hearing on the language of the 
amendment.  Before taking such lawful action, the Commissioners shall consider the Planning Board’s 
recommendation on each proposal.  If no recommendation is received from the Planning Board within 
thirty (30) days after the public hearing, the proposed amendment shall be deemed to have been 
approved by the Commissioners, and adopted. 
 
SECTION 4.  SEPARABILITY CLAUSE 
 
Should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be unconstitutional or 
invalid, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other 
than the part so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
SECTION 5:  PERMIT CHOICE 
Developers have the right to choose for an application to be reviewed under the regulations applicable 
at the original application.  This applies to the initial permit application and to subsequent related 
development permits.  If an application is on hold for six (6) months, whether the applicant voluntarily 
places it on hold, or fails to respond to requests for additional information, the permit choice is waived. 
An applicant shall not be made to wait for final action on the proposed change before proceeding if the 
applicant elected determination under prior rules.  (G.S. 143-755; G.S. 160D-108(b)).  If a local 
development regulation changes after an application is submitted, the applicant may choose the version 
of the rule that applies, but may require the applicant to comply with new rules if the applicant delays 
the application for six (6) months. (G.S. 143-755; G.S. 160D-108(b); S.L. 2019-111.Pt.1) 
 
An application for one (1) development permit triggers permit choice for permits under any 
development regulation, such permit choice is valid for eighteen (18) months after approval of the initial 
application. (G.S. 143-755; G.S.160D-108(b); S.L.2019-111.Pt.1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

18 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Upon the adoption of this Ordinance, all previous Mobile Home and Travel Trailer Park Ordinances are 
hereby repealed, except for any section expressly set out and retained herein. 
 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect when it is 
 
duly adopted by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Washington in North Carolina, this 
 
the _____________day of ______________________________, ___________ 
 
 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________________ 
                                           Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Julie Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 
Washington County Board of Commissions 

                       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

19 | P a g e  
 

 

 

APPENDIX I 

CERTIFICATES TO BE APPLIED TO FACE OF PLAT 

 

The area designated heron is in part located within, is totally located within, is not located within an 
area of Environmental Concern and requires, does not require a CAMA Permit prior to construction 
improvements. 

 

______________________,___________       _______________________________________________ 

DATE              Coastal Area Management Act Permit Officer 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

State of North Carolina ___________________________County 

I, _________________________certify that this map was drawn by me from an actual survey made by  

me, deed description recorded in Book__________Page________; as calculated latitudes and  

departures is 

 

Witness my hand and seal this ______________day of ______________________, ___________ 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Surveyor or Engineer 

Note:  Surveyor’s and/or Engineer’s certificate will be in accordance with the provisions of G. S. 47-30 as  

amended 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

The Washington County Health Department gives approval of the design and for the construction of 
septic tank systems on the lots shown on this plat. 

 

________________________, ____________   _______________________________________________ 

DATE                 Signature of Sanitarian 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO: 7 
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Quarter, Board Chair 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
The Board Chair will announce the Employee of the Quarter and present them with a 
certificate.  They will also receive a check for $50.00.  Ms. Collier will take their picture 
(in the foyer) which will be printed and displayed on the wall in the foyer of the 
Administration Building the following day. 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Audit Summary & Draft Audit Report Link, Thompson Price Scott 

Adams & Co., CPA PA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Someone from our Auditor’s office (mentioned above) will speak to the regarding the 
County’s FY22 Audit Report.  It is still in DRAFT format until approved by the LGC.  A 
summary is attached and a link is provided below for the complete draft audit document.  
A nicely bound version of the final audit will be given to each Commissioner once it is 
approved by the LGC. 
 
See attached for the draft audit summary. 
 
See the link below for the entire draft audit: 
 
https://fjr584.p3cdn1.secureserver.net/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Washington-County-
2022-Financials.pdf  
 
 
 
 
 

https://fjr584.p3cdn1.secureserver.net/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Washington-County-2022-Financials.pdf
https://fjr584.p3cdn1.secureserver.net/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/Washington-County-2022-Financials.pdf


Alan W. Thompson, CPA

1626 S Madison Street

PO Box 398

Whiteville, NC  28472

910.642.2109 phone

910.642.5958 fax
www.tpsacpas.com

WASHINGTON COUNTY

Presentation of Audit Results

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2022



PAGE(s)

I. GENERAL COMMENTS

II. REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

SAS 114 1‐3

III. AUDIT RESULTS 4‐12

IV. QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS

V. CLOSE

Washington County
Presentation Agenda 



Members 
American Institute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs - AICPA Division of Firms 

1 

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A. 
P.O. Box 398 

1626 S Madison Street 
Whiteville, NC  28472 

Telephone (910) 642-2109 
Fax (910) 642-5958 

Alan W. Thompson, CPA 
R. Bryon Scott, CPA 

Gregory S. Adams, CPA 

November 14, 2022

To the Board of Commissioners 
Washington County 
Plymouth, North Carolina 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Washington County for the year ended June 30, 2022.  Professional standards require that 
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, 
Government Auditing Standards, and OMB Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to 
the planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our letter to you 
dated May 4, 2022.   Professional standards also required that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant 
accounting policies used by Washington County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. The 
County adopted GASB 87 “Leases,” effective for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.  We noted no 
transactions entered into by Washington County during the year for which there was a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions 
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance 
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  There were no significant estimate(s) or assumptions noted during the 
audit. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  Certain financial statement 
disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statement users.  There 
are no such disclosures identified. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 



2 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a 
result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the 
aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representation 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated November 14, 2022. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a determination of the type of 
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Auditing Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as Washington County’s auditors. However, 
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were 
not a condition to our retention. 

There was a financial statement finding for a prior period adjustment that was recorded to correct the 
post-closure liability balance in the Sanitation Fund (see Prior Period Adjustment footnote and the 
description of the finding in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs in the audit report). 

The Local Government Commission (LGC) will no longer initiate communications about concerns or 
findings (formerly considered unit letters).  They have created a spreadsheet that has to be completed 
and submitted with the audit report.  If that worksheet identifies what they consider a "Financial 
Performance Indicators of Concern" (FPICs), we are required to communicate those items to the Board. 
The County is required to submit a response within 60 days of the Board meeting in which the financial 
statements are presented.  The detailed audit response should be presented to the entire Board, and 
signed by the entire Board, Finance Officer, and Manager.  The item that you will be required to respond 
to in this letter is the prior period adjustment finding. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to the Schedule of County’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension 
Liability (LGERS), Schedule of County Contributions (LGERS), Schedule of County’s Proportionate Share 
of Net Pension Asset (ROD), Schedule of County Contributions (ROD), Schedule of Changes in Total 
Pension Liability - Law Enforcement Officer’s Special Separation Allowance, and Schedule of Changes in 
Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, which is required supplementary information (RSI) that 
supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management 



 

3 
 

regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the RSI and do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the combining and individual non-major fund statement schedules, 
budgetary schedules, and other schedules, and the schedule of expenditures of federal and State 
awards, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of 
preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior 
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

 
Restriction on Use 
 
This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Commissioners and management of 
Washington County and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 
 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, P.A. 



2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

12,093,361          9,781,691            8,293,894            7,725,820            6,476,619         

1,411,742            1,211,964            1,203,854            2,278,430            1,234,320         

5,852,581            2,562,617            1,643,420            1,558,205            1,235,026         

14,373,938          13,986,925          14,086,611          13,101,560          13,268,139      

74.31% 61.27% 50.33% 41.58% 39.51%

6,240,780            7,089,712            5,446,620            3,889,185            4,007,273         

43.42% 50.69% 38.67% 29.68% 30.20%

1,064,093            1,963,662            1,189,090            1,897,923            1,652,540         

(401,734)              87,493                  (375,387)              (804,992)              (409,136)           

(62,776)                 75,685                  (70,459)                 (9,337)                   (20,823)             

319,741                304,183                275,967                225,334                72,883              

11,633,634          11,536,859          11,533,637          11,533,637          11,517,687      

5,825,385            5,519,589            5,285,780            5,029,805            4,768,435         

2,234,662            1,717,240            1,009,398            1,686,499            600,899            

682,975                695,067                682,975                682,975                682,975            

351,682                345,334                338,986                332,639                313,941            

587,909                853,330                1,014,861            1,018,509            712,701            

11,220,827          11,766,145          9,522,502            6,867,139            7,247,045         

726,647                317,058                235,782                505,058                439,891            

2,955,233            522,992                730,835                738,812                750,475            

587,909                853,330                1,014,861            1,018,509            712,701            

2,234,662            1,717,240            1,009,398            1,686,499            600,899            

12,093,361          9,781,691            8,293,894            7,725,820            6,476,619         

901,647                919,394                493,159                341,089                577,487            

2,486,405            2,318,944            2,479,659            2,080,226            2,491,163         

162,345                (388,012)              (498,697)              (458,238)              (448,901)           

3,366,223            3,046,482            2,742,299            2,466,332            2,240,998         

0.840                    0.845                    0.845                    0.845                    0.845                 

95.87% 95.96% 95.71% 95.84% 95.58%

95.36% 95.45% 95.23% 95.39% 95.08%

1,012,857,345     1,002,715,148     1,021,442,963     1,035,341,482     936,853,255    

8,498,170            8,472,943            8,273,688            8,386,266            7,916,410         

Breakdown of Debt (Excl Compensated Absences & OPEB)
43,212                  114,458                234,122                352,254                517,924            

18,601                  33,086                  ‐                             ‐                             ‐                         

3,164,000            3,357,147            3,573,567            3,781,884            3,982,400         

335,909                363,902                391,894                419,887                447,880            

3,561,722            3,868,593            4,199,583            4,554,025            4,948,204         

Unassigned Fund Balance 

Unassigned Fund Balance as % of General Fund Expenditures

(including Transfers out)
Revenues over (under) expenditures before other financing

sources

Property Tax Rates

Cash vs. Fund Balance (Net Position)

General Fund

Sanitation Fund

Water Fund

Total Fixed Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Cash

Cash vs. Accumulated Depreciation ‐ Water Fund

Emergency Medical Services Fund

Cash ‐ General

Cash ‐ Emergency Medical Services Fund

Washington County
FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR 5 YEARS

Restricted, Committed, and Assigned Fund Balance 

Total Fund Balance ‐ General Fund

Collection Percentages (excluding Motor Vehicle)

Total Fixed Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Cash

Unavailable Fund Balance ‐ GF (Restricted for State Statute,

Inventories, Prepaids)

General Fund Expenditures (including Transfers out)

Fund Balance Available as % of General Fund Expenditures

Cash vs. Accumulated Depreciation ‐ Sanitation Fund

Cash ‐ Other Governmental

Cash ‐ Sanitation Fund

Cash ‐ Water Fund

Fund Balance ‐ General

Fund Balance ‐ Emergency Medical Service Fund

Fund Balance ‐ Other Governmental Funds

Net Position ‐ Sanitation Fund

Net Position ‐ Water Fund

      Governmental ‐ Lease Liability

      Business‐type ‐ Revenue Bonds

      Business‐type ‐ Notes Payable (Direct Borrowing)

      Governmental ‐ Installment Purchase (Direct Placement)

Total Levy Amount

Total Property Valuation

Collection Percentages

4



2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

Washington County
FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR 5 YEARS

8,510,284            8,550,407            8,313,844            8,444,161            7,833,819         

2,649,592            2,543,205            2,326,057            2,091,579            2,114,734         

3,669,587            4,137,091            3,445,361            3,119,701            3,336,174         

257,272                165,278                304,367                488,203                491,111            

29,932                  9,118                    92,284                  153,471                67,105              

182,548                69,605                  172,772                53,644                  29,569              

15,299,215          15,474,704          14,654,685          14,350,759          13,872,512      

3,155,326            2,854,358            2,952,196            2,297,423            2,073,052         

3,782,146            3,565,761            3,693,340            3,606,534            3,459,612         

198,852                198,466                187,796                161,480                157,281            

4,817,068            4,483,759            4,069,048            4,072,986            4,120,759         

532,105                534,673                523,981                526,334                505,696            

1,735,000            1,822,407            1,984,881            1,723,000            1,816,761         

14,625                  51,636                  54,353                  65,079                  86,811              

      14,235,122        13,511,060        13,465,595        12,452,836     12,219,972 

Breakdown of General Fund Expenditures

General Government

Public Safety

          Total

         Total

Miscellaneous

Ad Valorem Taxes

Breakdown of General Fund Revenues

Other Taxes, License & Permits

Intergovernmental Revenue

Sales and Services

Investment Earnings

Human Services

Economic and Physical Development

Cultural & Recreational

Education

Debt Service

5



(Note ‐ 2022 Group Weighted Average Not Available at Date of Presentation)

Washington County
Analysis of Fund Balance

Washington County
Analysis of Fund Balance Available

 ‐

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total Fund Balance

Restricted, Committed and
Assigned Fund Balance

39.51%
41.58%

50.33%

61.27%

74.31%

33.40% 33.14%

40.71% 43.02%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Washington ‐ % of General Fund
Expenditures

Group Weighted Average ‐ % of
General Fund Expenditures

6



2543205
4137091

9118

Washington County

Analysis of Unassigned Fund Balance as a % of General Fund Expenditures

Washington County

Analysis of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures before Transfers

30.20% 29.68%
38.67%

50.69%

43.42%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Washington County ‐ % of General Fund Expenditures

 (1,000,000)

 (500,000)

 ‐

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

General Fund

Airport Grant Funnd

Emergency Medical Services Fund

Sanitation Fund

Water Fund

7



Cash Balances Fund Balances
General Fund 11,220,827$         12,093,361$       
Emergency Medical Service Fund 726,647                901,647               
Other Governmental Funds 2,955,233             2,486,405            
Sanitation Fund 587,909                162,345               
Water Fund 2,234,662             3,366,223            
       Total 17,725,278$         19,009,981$       

CASH BALANCES FUND BALANCES

Analysis of Cash and Fund Balances

at June 30, 2022

Washington County
Property Tax Rates

(Note ‐ 2022 Group Weighted Average Not Available at Date of Presentation)

2022

Washington County

$0.845  $0.845  $0.845  $0.845  $0.840 

$0.622 
$0.651  $0.640 

$0.658 

 $0.400

 $0.450

 $0.500

 $0.550

 $0.600

 $0.650

 $0.700

 $0.750

 $0.800

 $0.850

 $0.900

 $0.950

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Washington County

Group Weighted Average

General Fund

Emergency Medical
Services Fund

Sanitation Fund

Water Fund

Other Governmental
Funds

General Fund

Emergency Medical Services
Fund

Sanitation Fund

Water Fund

Other Governmental Funds

8



(Note ‐ 2022 Group Weighted Average Not Available at Date of Presentation)

Washington County
Collection Percentages

Debt Analysis (excluding Compensated Absences, Pension Liability & OPEB Liability)

FYE June 30, 2022

Washington County

95.58%
95.84% 95.71%

95.96% 95.87%

97.77% 97.78% 97.61%
98.14%

93.00%

94.00%

95.00%

96.00%

97.00%

98.00%

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Washington
County

Group Weighted
Average

43,212 , 1%

18,601 , 1%

3,164,000 , 89%

335,909 , 9%

      Governmental ‐ Direct Placement

      Governmental ‐ Lease Liability

      Business‐type ‐ Revenue Bonds

      Business‐type ‐ Direct Borrowing
Agreements

9



Break Down of General Fund Expenditures

FYE June 30, 2022

Washington County
Break Down of General Fund Revenue

FYE June 30, 2022

Washington County

Ad Valorem Taxes
55.63%

Other Taxes, License & 
Permits
17.32%

Intergovernmental 
Revenue
23.99%

Sales and Services
1.68%

Investment Earnings
0.20% Miscellaneous

1.19%

Ad Valorem Taxes Other Taxes, License & Permits Intergovernmental Revenue

Sales and Services Investment Earnings Miscellaneous

General Government
22.17%

Public Safety
26.57%

Economic and Physical 
Development

1.40%

Human Services
33.84%

Cultural & Recreational
3.74%

Education
12.19%

Debt Service
0.10%

General Government Public Safety Economic and Physical Development

Human Services Cultural & Recreational Education

Debt Service

10



Finding 2022‐01 Prior Period Adjustment

The County's third party landfill engineering consultant made an error in its original calculations 

and report submitted to the County and relied upon in the County's preparation of its FY21 Audit 

regarding total estimated landfill capacity and related postclosure cost. The error was made due 

to the engineer's failure to take the County's most recent landfill cell expansion into account as 

part of the capacity and post closure calculations and final report. As a result of correcting this 

error, for FY22 the County was required to record a prior period adjustment in the landfill 

fund that decreased the beginning liability balance, thereby increasing net position in the 

landfill fund by$613,133.

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Changes to the Audit Process

The Local Government Commission (LGC) will no longer initiate communications about concerns

or findings (formerly considered unit letters). They have created a spreadsheet that has to be

completed and submitted with the audit report. If that worksheet identifies what they consider a

"Financial Performance Indicators of Concern" (FPICs), we are required to communicate those

items to the Board.

You are required to submit a response within 60 days of the Board meeting in which the financial

statements are presented. The detailed audit response should be presented to the entire Board,

and signed by the entire Board, Finance Officer, and Manager.

The following are the items that have to be addressed by responding directly to the LGC with a

corrective action plan.

11



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  9 
 
       DATE:  December 5, 2022 
 
 
ITEM:      Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Albemarle Commission 
 
The Albemarle Commission’s current At-Large Delegate's term will expire on December 
31, 2022.  The At-Large Delegate position for the 2023-2024 term now rotates to 
Washington County.  The Commissioners are tasked with appointing an At-Large 
Delegate to serve for our county. This appointee is not to be an elected official, but 
someone in the community who shares the same mission of the Albemarle Commission 
which is to enhance the quality of the lives of our citizens in the Albemarle Region 
through direct services and assistance in planning, program development and 
management, public-private partnerships and leadership. 
 
Please bring the name of an appointee to the December 5, 2022 Board of Commissioners 
meeting to be voted on at that meeting. 
 
Rural Planning Organization--RTAC 
 
With Mr. Sexton coming off of the Board, another Commissioner will need to be 
appointed to replace him on the RPO.  Currently, Commissioner Phelps serves as the 
alternate. (Their next meeting will be January 18, 2023.) 
 
Commissioners Seats on Boards and Committees 
 
Attached is the list from January 3, 2022 of the Commissioners Seats on various Boards 
and Committees.  Each December, the Board discusses if they would like change seats on 
any of the Committees.  Any changes that are made are brought back to the Board at the 
January meeting for approval. 



Name Board or Committee Expiration Date

Carol V. Phelps Lake Phelps Advisory Board Indefinite
Washington County Drainage Indefinite
Albemarle Commission RPO-Alternate Indefinite
Travel & Tourism Authority Indefinite

Tracey A. Johnson
Albemarle Commission--Workforce Development Program 
Consortium Board Indefinite
Albemarle Commission--Executive Committee--COG Indefinite
Hospital Advisory Board Indefinite
Trillium Health Board Indefinite
Broadband Task Force Committee Indefinite
Employee of the Quarter Committee Indefinite

Julius Walker, Jr. Department of Social Services Board Indefinite
Hospital Advisory Board Indefinite
JCPC Board Indefinite
SmartStart Partnership for Children Indefinite
ARSWA

Ann C. Keyes Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee Indefinite
Fire Commission Indefinite
MTW Health Department Board Indefinite
Albemarle Commission--Washington County Alternate Indefinite
Safety Committee Indefinite
Local Emergency Planning Committee Indefinite
Planning Board Indefinite

Bill Sexton Washington County Drainage Indefinite
Lake Phelps Advisory Board Indefinite
Resource Conservation & Development Indefinite
Hospital Advisory Board Indefinite
Albemarle Commission RPO Indefinite

Washington County Boards & Committees

Commissioners Seats

January 3, 2022



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM: Finance Officer’s Report and Budget Transfers/Budget Amendments 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will be presenting Budget Amendments/Budget 
Transfers and asking for the Board’s approval/disapproval.  Ms. Dixon will then discuss 
her financial report.  
 

 
 





























































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  11 
 
       DATE:     December 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, County Manager/County 

Attorney or Clerk 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 Department Head Reports for November 2022 

See attached. 
 
 Department Head Statistical Reports for November 2022 

See attached. 
 

 DSS Annual Report for the Community Child Protection Team (CCPT) 
See attached.  DSS is required to submit this report to the Commissioners.  This is 
for info only.   No budget impact and no action to be taken. 

 
 MTW Annual Report for the Child Fatality Protection Team (CFPT). 

See attached.  MTW is required to submit this report to the Commissioners.  This 
is for info only.   No budget impact and no action to be taken. 
 

 Special Child Protection Cost 
Mr. Potter will discuss this with the Board. 
 

 Approval of Bids for 72-Person Bus 
Mr. Potter will discuss his with the Board. 

 
REMINDER OF UPCOMING CHRISTMAS PARADES (let the Clerk know if you want to use 
the Durango): 
December 3 @ 11:00 AM—Columbia – lineup @ 10:00 AM 
December 4 @ 3:00 PM – Mid-County VFD (Pea Ridge) – lineup @ 2:00 PM 
December 8 @ 5:30 PM – Plymouth – lineup @ 4:30 PM (at WC High School) 
December 10 @ 11:00 AM – Creswell – lineup @ 10:00 AM 



 
 

 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
December 5, 2022 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Richard Livingston 
 
The GIS related work load for November has been relatively low. I continue to verify PINS, 
maintain cadastral data, and answer citizen inquiries primarily related to property ownership. 
New this month has been the discussion of continued GIS service provision in the years to 
come with my eventual return to school. My goal is ensuring that Washington County and its 
citizens are left with a satisfactory level of GIS service provision at a cost that makes sense. I 
have been working with the County Manager and Tax Administrator to discuss different 
strategies that could be employed to ensure this. I hope to have some findings to report to the 
Board relatively soon. 
 
Thank you for the time you took to read this update and I look forward to continued service to 
the people of Washington County. 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
EMS STAFFING:   
The EMS Division has two Full Time Paramedic positions and two Full Time EMT positions 
available.   The Transport Division has two Full Time EMT positions available. We are also 
accepting applications for part time positions.  The Basic EMT course at the BCCC Roper 
Campus is still being well attended.  
 
EMPLOYEE SAFETY: 
PPE remains at a comfortable level and is sufficient to absorb a peak in call volume for 
approximately 45 days.  EMS and Transport Providers continue to manage the daily disinfecting 
practices inside the bases and ambulances with intermittent deep decon of EMS units.  Incidents 
of Flu and RSV in adults and children has started leveling out.    
Traumatic injuries have decreased as well related to gun and knife violence.  Currently, with 
assistance from Cameron Birtcher and the NCACC we are working to secure ballistic vests for 
our EMS providers.   
 
OTHER SYSTEM BUSINESS:  
UNC PECC+ Program :  Jessica Howery traveled to New Bern early November and took 
delivery of the Carter Kits Sensory Bags for our EMS units. They contain clinically proven items 
known to comfort and appropriately focus children who are on the autism spectrum as well as 
many other children who occasionally find themselves overwhelmed or other impacted by 
traumatic events.  



 
 

 

 

 

Duke RACE-CARS Trial Program:   Representatives from Duke will be here in early December 
for a Fall Regional Visit to meet with EMS and our community partners.  
 
APPARATUS:  
The QRV has been delivered and is getting close to being ready for implementation into the 
fleet.  Once Motorola has installed and programmed the radio we will be able to request 
scheduling of the NCOEMS State Inspection.  

 
 

 



 
 

 

 
The EMS Ambulance has just arrived at Select Custom Apparatus in Falkland from the factory 
in Florida and upfit of our agency specific needs is underway.  
 

 
 
The Transport Ambulance Project is encountering some difficulties due to major demand for 
units and supply chain/chassis shortages.  We are continuing to work diligently to act on this 
capital project as soon as possible.  
 
HOSPITAL:  Since the beginning of the frequent CT/X-Ray diversions occurring at WRMC, 
our 911 units have transported approximately 40 patients to hospitals in our surrounding counties 
that would have normally been transported to our local hospital.  Over the Thanksgiving 
holidays, WRMC stayed on CT/-Ray diversion approximately 110 hours straight.  This is 
significantly impacting our units turn-around time, fuel consumption and maintenance costs.  
Most concerning is the increase in hours that our units are outside of the county and not available 
or delayed from answering calls for service by our citizens.   
 
EMS SUBSCRIPTION PROGRAM: These programs have been prevalent in certain parts of 
the country for decades.  They differ among EMS agencies, but the common thread is that most 
charge an annual fee to subscribers – who in return receive financial benefits of some kind.  
Typically, the benefits either involve the write-off or reduction of out-of-pocket charges, or a 
discount on the services. It can be viewed as an additional revenue source because not everyone 
who subscribes will ultimately be transported.  Some important considerations include:  
 
*Percentage of population eligible for the service.  To be eligible for the program, the subscriber 
MUST have Medicare or Private Insurance.  Medicaid and Uninsured are not eligible.  In FYE22 
our payer mix was 58% Medicaid patients.   
 
* Increased administrative work.  Maintaining the subscription list and supplying it to the billing 
company would become very complex especially if the program offers continuous open 
enrollment.  
 



 
 

 

* There are some legal considerations that would be better addressed by our County Attorney.  
In NC: Johnston County EMS, Wake County EMS, Emerald Isle EMS and Gaston County are 
the most popular systems offering the program.   
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Wash Co Recreation 8 U Football team played in a Carolina Trophy bowl on Saturday the 19th 
in Camden.  They played against Bertie and Plymouth won 20 to 0. 

  

The cheerleaders participated in a fun day activity with other cheerleaders. They did a routine on 
the field. It was an enjoyable day.  God blessed the 8 under to come home with a trophy. 

Now its basketball season. It’s time to take off cleats and put on sneakers!  Registration and open 
gym is Monday Thursday 5:00 to 6:30pm and Saturdays from 10:00am to 1:00pm. 

 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
  
(Giving Departmental Update at Dec. 5 BoCC mtg) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 

 
Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted. 



 
 

 

Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. The AV50 report was submitted to the NC DOR per NCGS.  This is a report of the 
values of the exemptions and exclusions. 

2. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services.  
3. Refunds and Releases were presented to and approved by the Commissioners at the 

November meeting. We work to have these processed each month so any refunds 
are timely.    

4. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 
releases, and general questions in regards to motor vehicles.  

5. Each Monday, as I can, I sit in on an Assessor’s Town Hall Zoom meeting.    
6. Continue to verify PINs for various reasons – usually for the filing of deeds – if 

Richard is out of the office.  Corresponding with him, as needed, if there is a 
question or issue with a property or properties that includes GIS.  

7. We continue to get calls for Republic Services, we direct the taxpayer to the 
county’s website and Landfill.   

8. The tax clerks – Christal and Hollie - are handling the day to day processing of 
payments, handling phone calls and emails as they can but also work is being 
delegated to them as it can be.   

9. Felesha continues to work on transfers and preparing our system for the 
upcoming listing period of Jan 1 – Jan 31. The print files are sent to our 
printers in December for mailing of the listing forms by the end of December. 

10. Received the cost index & depreciation schedules for 2023.  These are keyed 
into our system for proper assessment of business personal property in 2023. 

11. Darlene Harrison continues to work on debt setoff files, wage garnishment files 
and bank attachment files. She assists the other staff as needed. 

12. I continue to work on transfers that have splits, assessment questions/issues 
and audits of our accounts. Performance evaluation of staff is scheduled for 
December. Several internal audits are in line to be completed over the next 
several months by Darlene Harrison and I.   

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
Soil and Water 
VACANT 
 
No report submitted. 
 



 
 

 

Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Public Utilities 
Lee Sasser 
 
No report submitted. 
 

Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 

Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Place order for Investigator’s Dell laptop. 
2. Issue with Lynn Swett – not able to vpn to Edmunds. Give Shaun updated copy of files to 

install on Lynn’s laptop. Create folder on server to maintain copy. 
3. Work on IT CIP with Richard. 
4. Contact NCACC concerning multi-factor authentication and cyber insurance requirements. 

Multi-factor authentication will be required in the very near future to maintain cyber  
insurance. Discuss with Missy. 

5. Work with Jason Adams from Motorola to sort through 911 radio equipment to determine  
what can be placed in surplus. Document and send copy of list to County Manager’s office. 

6. Attend NCACC Risk Management meeting in Washington with Missy and Fetima on  
11/16/22. 

7. Troubleshoot issue with connection to shared folder from Tax laptop. 
8. Contact SSG to work on issue with Outlook calendar in County Manager’s office. 
9. Submit ticket to NCDIT to move Renee’s phone back to County Manager side of building. 
10. Research email from BrightSpeed concerning account with CICAT Networks. 
11. Review new option (Card Table) in BaseCamp with Mary Moscato. Setup card table for 

EM/Planning Move. Review Card Table at County Manager’s group meeting.  
12. Work with Edmunds on code update issue. 
13. Setup new computer for EMS (Annette Ward). Install updates/office and setup profiles and 

desktop. 
14. NAS hard drive failure. Order hard drive & replace. 
15. Refresh quotes for EM for Dell equipment. 
16. Discuss 911 Grant opportunity with Anna Johnson. 
17. Setup new computers for Lance Swindell, Allen Pittman and Connie Barnes. Install 

updates/office and setup profiles and desktop. 
18. Get pricing for EM ups and email to Planning. 
19. Discuss legislative requirements for ups with 911 Board. 
20. Submit ticket to NCDIT to disconnect 252-793-9788 (EM/Planning) fax line and remove 

from billing. Work with NCDIT and BrightSpeed - BrightSpeed unable to locate line in  
their system. Resolved and scheduled to disconnect on 11/30/22. 

21. Work with Allen, Lance and Connie on phone lines and extension that need to be moved to 
County Admin Building. Submit ticket to NCDIT to move Lance on 12//05/22. 
 



 
 

 

22. Request for information from Keith Phelps to install camera system in Magistrate’s office. 
Get requested information and email to Keith. 

23. Attend Cyber Security class in Dare County on 11/18/22.  
24. Attend Departmental meeting. 
25. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
26. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
27. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
28. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
No report submitted. 
 
Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 7 runway lights, also had 4 broken runway light globes. First time having 
runway globes broken. 

2. November has been slowest month for aviation sales I have ever seen. 
3. Found problem on Av/Gas reel motor and fixed problem. Hose reel is now working.       
4. Campbell Oil is supposed to be here Monday (Dec. 5) to install fuel filters plus, add new 

filter to Av/gas and Jet distribution cabinet.    
5. Future Projects:   
6. Replace Av/gas hose and jet fuel hose.                                                  
7. Clean debris around perimeter of airport.                                                  
8. Clean logging road overgrowth.                                                                                                                                           
9. Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.      
10. Find someone to contract installing sump pumps on Av/gas tank and sump pump on Jet/A 

fuel tank.  (Hopefully can be done by Campbell Oil)                                                                                                                                                                                                
11. Have sump pumps for the Av/gas and jet fuel tanks. Will have to get piping for each tank 

to be able to install sump pumps. 
12. Jet reel motor stopped working also. Have to find problem, fix it.       
13. Have to add fill dirt in spots around runway lights, and fixtures that has sunken in or 

washed away to meet FAA safety standards.   
14.  Need to put weed killer in cracks on runway and taxiway.    
15.  Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway, entire airport.                               
16.  Need to cut around runway and taxiway lights.  
17. Will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet FAA 

safety standards.  
18. Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear on 

airport equipment.                                                              
19. Repair Beacon                                                                                                         
20. Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator) 
21. Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                             
22. Replace underground phone line to FMU at refueling station.       



 
 

 

Facility Services 
Louis Boone 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
(Sends COVID-19 updates throughout the month when necessary) 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
 

Surplus Update 
   

Currently At Auction 
Asset List Price End Date 
H20 Dept- Caravan Didn't Sale relist 

   
Sold ( or pending sale) 

Asset Price Status 

   
   
   
   

Preparing to be Listed 
Asset Status   
SO Vehicles holding on decals  
IT Surplus advertising  

 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
No report submitted. 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by 
Gender)

Total 
Incacerations

56 62 44 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 162 162
Male 40 42 29 111
Female 3 4 4 11
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 1 1 0 2
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0
Male 12 15 11 38
Female 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

MARTIN

DETENTION 
FY22-23

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

0

0

38

0

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SMCP
SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

0

0

122

0

2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcerations  in FY
(includes all Counties)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

WC Dispatched 138 134 130 151 553
WC Transported 98 101 91 106 396
WC Refusals 40 33 39 45 157

Transport Washington
Hospital to Hospitals 6 2 3 1 12
SNF to Doctors 85 65 98 136 384
Hospital Discharges 10 21 12 19 62
EMS Back Up 1 6 6 3 16

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

TC Dispatched 60 61 69 71 261
TC Transported 49 41 48 44 182
TC Refusals 11 20 21 27 79

Mutual Aid Hyde
HC Dispatched 0 0 0 2 2
HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 2 2

                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY22-23

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Pickups FY23

553

396

157



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals
Building $1,355.00 2,150.00$          3,014.54$   2,374.60$   1,130.00$   $10,024.14
Zoning 75.00$      25.00$         100.00$       75.00$         175.00$       $450.00

Reinspect 225.00$    -$             150.00$       725.00$       175.00$       $1,275.00
SWUF $150.00 125.00$       250.00$       -$             -$             $525.00

HO Recovery 
Fee $0.00 10.00$         -$             10.00$         $20.00

Total $1,805.00 $2,300.00 $3,524.54 $3,174.60 $1,490.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,294.14

PLANNING AND ZONING
FY22-23

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00

$3,500.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY22-23) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

82%

4%

10%
4%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building

Zoning

Reinspect

SWUF

HO Recovery
Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 0
Unduplicated Attendees 0
New Particpants 0
Center-Sponsored Events 0
Special Events 0
Caregiver's Support Group 0
Exercise Room 0
Dance Fitness 0
Yoga 0
Chair Exercise 0
Beginner's Line Dance 0
Aerobics With Sandra Taylor 0
Crafts With Sandra Lee 0
Craft Room 0
Drop-in Activities 0
Art Class 0
Computer Wi-fi 0

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Congregate Meals Served 0
Home-Delivered Meals Served 0
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups 0

YTD Total
CONTRIBUTION DATA -$        -$        -$          -$        -$        -$      -$        -$        -$  -$  -$  -$  -$            
Congregate Meals -$            
Home-Delivered Meals -$            
Activity Fees -$            
Donations -$            

SENIOR CENTER
FY22-23

0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June

Meals Served (FY22-23)

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Senior Center Activities (FY22-23) Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

Dance Fitness

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Aerobics With Sandra Taylor

Crafts With Sandra Lee

Craft Room

Drop-in Activities

Art Class

Computer Wi-fi



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                      
Current Year Tax 898,210.32$      2,292,012.84$   404,187.42$      223,827.03$   3,818,237.61$                     
Current Yr Discount (16,983.97)$       (32,457.61)$       (600.68)$             -$                (50,042.26)$                         
Current Year Penalty 107.78$              2,564.03$           516.33$              218.50$          3,406.64$                             
Current Year Interest -$                    -$                    -$                    554.41$          554.41$                                Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
Watershed Tax Current 
Yr 10,162.47$        27,388.25$        4,764.97$           2,666.75$       44,982.44$                          
Watershed Discount (203.16)$             (387.62)$             (7.00)$                 -$                (597.78)$                               
Watershed Penalty 1.24$                  30.56$                6.09$                  1.11$              39.00$                                  
Watershed Interest -$                    -$                    -$                    6.41$              6.41$                                    Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
Prior Year Tax 44,247.58$        89,391.99$        42,863.52$        33,593.45$     210,096.54$                        
Prior Year Penalty 154.44$              72.04$                12.85$                58.08$            297.41$                                
Prior Year Interest 4,028.32$           8,724.90$           5,215.11$           3,961.82$       21,930.15$                          
Prior Year Watershed 378.70$              590.37$              306.97$              265.82$          1,541.86$                             
Prior Year WS Penalty 1.69$                  0.91$                  0.33$                  0.88$              3.81$                                    
Prior Year WS Interest 333.37$              468.29$              271.88$              289.19$          1,362.73$                             
Bad Checks -$                    -$                    (538.54)$             (1,425.85)$      (1,964.39)$                           
Prepayments 520.18$              3,572.47$           3,255.73$           3,081.94$       10,430.32$                          

TOTAL 940,958.96$      2,391,971.42$   460,254.98$      267,099.54$   -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  4,060,284.90$                     

Initiated 1 5 0 9 15
Amount 1,338.48$           3,763.76$           -$                    4,187.72$       7,951.48$                             
Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 2 2
Amount -$                    -$                    -$                    787.64$          787.64$                                

*
76,269.23 93,475.19$        77,088.65$     246,833.07$                        

 -$                                      
Billed Current Yr 1,173,600.00$   1,173,600.00$                     
Collected Current Yr 171,230.20$      329,298.44$      73,561.83$        54,369.74$     628,460.21$                        
Bad Checks -$                    -$                    (300.00)$             (340.00)$         (640.00)$                               

TOTAL 171,230.20$      329,298.44$      73,261.83$        54,029.74$     -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  627,820.21$                        

Billed Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      
Collected Current Yr -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      
Prior Yrs Collected -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                                      

Collected Current Yr 8,733.79$           62,366.75$        20,645.48$        11,311.92$     103,057.94$                        

Creswell Levy 3,564.64$           22,463.38$        14,258.93$        1,581.06$       41,868.01$                          
1,124,487.59$   2,899,575.18$   661,896.41$      411,110.91$   -$                -$                    -$                    -$                -$                -$                -$                -$  5,097,070.09$                     

Tax and Tag 
Solid Waste Fees

TAX
FY22-23

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

Drainage Fees -    

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD 
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 1187 1165 1129 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3481
Law Enforcement 927 894 874 2695

Animal Control 88 126 79 293
EMS 172 145 176 493

Reported Incidents 62 54 50 52 218
Total Arrests 14 16 11 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 51

Misdemeanor Arrests 5 6 9 8 28
Felony Arrests 9 10 2 2 23

Total Papers Served 64 79 66 75 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 284
Criminal Papers Served 10 2 0 3 15

Civil Papers Served 54 77 66 72 269
Total Papers Outstanding 15 27 32 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 90
Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 0 0 2 9

Civil Papers Outstanding 8 27 32 14 81
Gun Permits Issued 23 18 16 18 75
Conceals Pending 0 0 0 0 0

Concealed Permits Issued 21 27 17 21 86

SHERRIFF
FY22-23

78%

8%

14%

Dispatched Calls (FY22-23)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Gun Permits (FY22-23)

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

218

28 23
15

269

9

81

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

YTD TOTALS

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY22-23)

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in 
million gallons) 7656 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 8956

88,905

Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in 
million gallons) 7707 7855

8266 6766 30,594

Base Charges 65,364$      65,388$    65,292$    65,292$    261,336$        
Consumption Charges 48,516$      50,505$    55,159$    38,779$    192,959$        
Reconnecton Charges 1,785$        2,205$      1,645$      1,715$      7,350$            

 Number of Abatements 
13 21

23 21 78                   

  Dollar Amount of 
Abatements 1,547.00$  2,697$      

3,146$      3,452$      10,842.00$    

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons) 13.9 15.6 14.5 14.5 58.500

Number of Customers 2657 2658 2654 2654 10,623
New taps 0 0 2 0 2
Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$    4,844.65$  4,844.65$  4,844.65$  19,378.60$            

0

WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY22-23

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in million gallons)



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 58.36 57.92 62.47 59.7 238.45
Inert Debris 10.77 11 35.74 11.96 69.47
Scrap Metal 5.27 5.97 0.77 0.96 12.97
C&D 155.3 150.13 38.92 101.80 446.15
Tires 2.9 2.90 4.54 4.18 14.52

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 22-23

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

PO Box 10 ~ 209 E Main Street 
Plymouth, NC   27962 
Phone {252} 793-4041 
Fax (252} 793-3195 

 
 
 

November 30, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
To:   Washington County Board of County Commissioners 

 
As required by North Carolina law, the attached report is submitted for the information of the 
Washington County Commissioners by the Community Child Protection Team.  The purpose of 
CCPT is to identify and address gaps or deficiencies in services and resources for children and 
families, as well as build public awareness through multiple resources, including providing our 
findings and concerns for your information via this annual report. 
 
We are proud of what the Washington County Community Child Protection Team has 
accomplished over the years and the leadership that the teams provide to their local communities and 
to the development of state policy.  
 
If the Commissioners have questions concerning the operations of this team or issues related to 
Child Protection in our county, please let me know. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Demaine Hill 
Chairman, CCPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WASHINGTON COUNTY 
COMMUNITY CHILD PROTECTION TEAM (CCPT) 

 
ANNUAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Calendar Year 2021    
 
History of CCPT 

The Community Child Protection Team (CCPT) was established by law (General Statue 7B-
1406) in May of 1991 as a means for the state and local communities to form a partnership to 
strengthen child protection.  This was a result of revenue shortfalls on both the state and local 
levels, making it difficult to fund the necessary number of social workers needed to investigate 
abuse/neglect reports and provide needed ongoing services for families.   The CCPT is an 
interdisciplinary group of community representatives who meet regularly to promote a 
community-wide approach to the problem of child abuse and neglect. Although the activities are 
usually coordinated by the Department of Social Services, the CCPT is not a Department of 
Social Services (DSS) team, but a county team.  The CCPT may not encompass a geographic nor 
governmental area larger than one county.  
 
Purpose of CCPT 
The Community Child Protection Team (CCPT) reviews are designed to assist DSS and families 
in protecting children by identifying barriers in services and collaborating on strategies to 
remedy the situation.   The outcome of a CCPT review must result in identification of a gap in 
services, a need for additional services or resources needed in the community or a collaborative 
recommendation of action that may remove a risk situation for a child.  Review of cases also 
generate a needs list. The cases reviewed may bring to the surface underlying problems that 
impact the entire community rather than focusing on the families in the DSS system.  Some of 
these situations may be financial barriers, transportation needs, failed communication systems 
between resources, procedural barriers and or inadequate services. 
 
Washington County opted to combine the CFPT with the existing CCPT, as did the majority of 
counties in North Carolina.  We meet in conjunction with the Washington County Child Fatality 
Prevention Team (CFPT), which is a program administered through the Washington County 
Health Department.  The combined CCPT/CFPT reviews child protective services cases 
presented by DSS or at the request of team members; and all child fatalities of county resident 
children under the age of 18 that occurred in the previous year. Through the review of records of 
agencies represented, the team identifies gaps in services and searches for ways to prevent future 
child abuse, neglect, and fatalities. 
 
 
Membership 
The CCPT shall consist of representatives of public and nonpublic agencies in the community 
that provide services to children and their families and other individuals who represent the 
diversity of the community. Membership is mandated by law and includes: 
 
1. The county director of social services and a member of the director's staff; 



2. A local law enforcement officer; 
3. An attorney from the district attorney's office, appointed by the district attorney; 
4. The executive director of a local community action agency, Department Health and Human 
Services, or the executive director's designee; 
5. The superintendent of each local school administrative unit located in the county, or the 
superintendent's designee; 
6. A member of the county board of social services, appointed by the chair of that board;  
7. A local mental health professional, appointed by the director of the area; 
8. The local guardian ad litem coordinator, or the coordinator's designee; 
9. The director of the department of public health; and 
10. A local health care provider, appointed by the local board of public health. 
 
The board of county commissioners may appoint a maximum of five additional members to 
represent various county agencies or the community at large to serve on any local team. Team 
members appointed by the board of county commissioners should represent the diversity of the 
community. This is an opportunity for teams to involve all aspects of the community that impact 
children or have the potential to impact children. 
 
Selection of Cases for Review 
Categories of cases reviewed by the team are to be based on local need, but may include one or 
more of the following groups of children noted in the literature to be at higher risk of subsequent 
injury or death as a result of child abuse, neglect, or dependency: 
 
A. Substantiated cases of abuse, including sexual abuse. 
  
B. Reports of neglect of a child, especially when made by a medical provider, specifically reports 
of maltreatment involving dehydration, bruises, broken bones, positive tests for controlled 
substances, etc. 
 
C. Cases in which the department has “Substantiated” or found the family to be “In Need of 
Services”. 
 
D. Families that have been reported several times over a short span of time and the reports were 
screened out or other cases at the request of a team member, including children receiving any 
child welfare services, cases known to team members where there are indications that child has 
been affected by a deficiency in a community system or resource. 
 
E. Child fatalities. 
 
 
Washington County - CCPT reviews 
Last year, Washington County CCPT reviewed 6 cases that involved child abuse, neglect and/or 
dependency.  Several cases involved past history with Child Protective Services.  Many of the 
cases involved domestic violence, lack of appropriate parenting, sexual abuse of one or more 
children, mental health issues of both the parents and the children, physical health issues of the 
children, and substance abuse issues by the parents. Many of the parents of these children were 



in foster care themselves.  There are limited services, especially regarding mental health 
facilities, available to the families of Washington County which could help alleviate some of 
these issues. Most of the families reviewed had long histories with Child Protective Services.    
 
Washington County CCPT/CFPT Community Outreach Success - Activities and 
Accomplishments 

• The team met 3 times in 2021.  Due to COVID-19 the Team was unable to meet in 
January. 

• Our community health department opened a drive-thru Covid vaccine clinic in all three 
counties in March.  The Washington County drive-thru clinic was set up at the middle 
school.    

•  In the month of April posters and banners were hung around town in honor of Child 
Abuse Awareness month in an effort to remind the community of their responsibility to 
call Social Services if they suspect abuse. 

• In the month of June our community health department did a Car seat training which was 
conducted at the fire department in Plymouth.  Those that participated and completed the 
training qualified as a certified passenger safety technician.   The health department also 
passed out baby monitors to help aid in the protection of children. 

• In the month of August, the County hosted National Night Out. 
• In the month of November, our community health department began doing Pfizer 

vaccines for children five years and older.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TEAM MEMBERS  
WASHINGTON COUNTY  

CCPT-CFPT MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

DSS Director or member of staff   Demaine Hill, CPS Supervisor 

Local law enforcement officer(s)  Det. Brian Soria 
      Captain Kevin Phelps 
 
Attorney from the DA’s office   Seth Edwards, District Attorney 

Exec. Dir. of local community action  Wendy Hedgebeth, EIC 

County schools or designee   Dina Brown 

Member of DSS Board   Wendy Furlough 

Local GAL Coordinator   Gwendolyn Goddard, District Supervisor 

Local health care Provider   Latonya Jenkins, Director of Nursing 

Director of Dept of Health   Wes Gray, Director 

Emergency Medical services provider Jennifer O’Neal, EMS Director 

District Court Judge    Regina Parker, Chief Judge 

County Medical Examiner   Jennifer O’Neal, County Coroner 

Representative of local day care 
Or head start program    Kay Overton, Executive Director 
 
Parents of a child who died before 
Reaching 18th birthday   Wendy Furlough 
 
 
Appointed by County Commissioners 
 
Appointee 1     Zebedee Taylor, Executive Director, RDC 
 
Appointee 2     Doretha Garrett, Domestic Violence 
 
Appointee 3     Brandy Goodwin, Library Director 
 
Appointee 4     Mark Wilmouth, Minister, Zion’s Chapel 
 
Appointee 5     Jean Warren, Deputy Clerk 
  



 
Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team  

Report to the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington District Board of Health 
March 1st 2022 

 
Background: North Carolina has a three tier Child Fatality Prevention System of which 
the local child fatality prevention teams are one component. The three tiers of the system 
include the North Carolina Child Fatality Prevention Task Force which is a legislative 
study commission, the North Carolina Child Fatality Prevention Team (state team) which 
reviews child death through the Medical Examiner system, and the Community Child 
Protection Teams which review active cases of suspected abuse and neglect, and child 
deaths due to suspected abuse and neglect. The local child fatality prevention teams 
(CFPTs) were legislatively established in 1993 and there are teams in all 100 counties. It 
is the responsibility of the local health departments to assure that these teams are 
operational. 
 
Mission: The mission of the local team is to review the deaths of children, ages 0 -17 
years, that are not due to suspected abuse or neglect and about which no previous report 
of abuse or neglect has been made to the county department of social services within the 
past 12 months The local CFPTs review those child deaths due to homicide, suicide, 
fires, illness, prematurity and perinatal cause, among others, to search for ways to prevent 
child deaths. 
 
Purpose: The purpose of the local child fatality prevention teams are to: 1) identify the 
causes of child deaths; 2) identify gaps or deficiencies that may exist in order to improve 
the delivery of services to children and families; and 3) make recommendations for 
changes and carry out changes that could prevent future child fatalities (Division of 
Public Health Agreement Addendum).  
 
The Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team, a sub-committee of the 
Washington County Child Protection Team meets quarterly during the year. It is during 
these meetings that team members review child fatalities that occurred the previous year, 
determine if there were any system problems that caused or contributed to the fatality, 
make any recommendations or develop action plans to address the area of concern.  
These findings are reported to the Team Coordinator in the Children and Youth Branch 
within the North Carolina Division of Public Health. 
 
The Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team met three times during 2021: 
April 28th , July 27th, and November 22nd of 2021. One case was reviewed for 2020. 
These meetings were only held three times due to covid restrictions.  
 
 
 



 
We now have three certified North Carolina Child Passenger Safety Technicians working 
within our three-county district. They completed the training back in June 2021. 
 
The Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team will continue to review any 
child fatalities, identify risk areas and promote safety to reduce the number of fatalities in 
our community. 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
November 7, 2022 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
November 7,  2022 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-
19 pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming and in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 
Adams Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Tracey Johnson, Ann Keyes, Carol Phelps, Bill 
Sexton and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also present were County Manager/County 
Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.   
 

 Chair Johnson called the meeting to order. Commissioner Sexton gave the invocation; 
Commissioner Phelps led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Mrs. Bennett, Clerk to the Board said a request was made 
from the Planning Director to pull the public hearing and approval of the amendment of the 
Manufactured Home Ordinance. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda: 
 

Items listed under the Consent Agenda are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may 
take action to approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld 
from a general action, to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the 
Board. 

a) Approval of Minutes for October 3, 2022 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases & Insolvent Accounts 
c) Letter of Support for Ramsar/Pocosin Refuge 
d) Tax (Foreclosures) Contract 
e) Fee schedule amendment:  Landfill 
f) RESO 2022-045 Approving and Accepting Sale of Real 

Property at 272 North Street, Plymouth, NC 
  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

   
 PUBLIC FORUM: Ms. Teresa Yates Spear of Spruill Loop Road stated she has been 
here since 2019 and was in Johnston County before that.  She worked in EMS. She talked to the 
Commissioners about a program they had there where they had a subscription drive that pays 
$60/yr. for transport. Ms. Spear said she would be glad to assist Washington County with such a 
program. Chair Johnson said she will give the information to our EMS Director to see if we 
could benefit from this type of program. 
 

Mr. Lloyd Jones, Roper, stated that he has been here since 1936. Tomorrow is voting day. 
Polls are open from 7:00 AM - 7:00 PM. If we don’t vote we could lose that privilege. 
 
 
 PUBLIC HEARING:  FUNDING FOR A NEW SCHOOL:  Mr. Potter read the following 
Resolution: 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
Mr. Potter stated that the project is a 165,000 sq. ft. building and will facilitate all 

Washington County schools into one. Project timelines are moving forward in different steps and 
all parts are being reviewed by various teams. We are in pre-construction phase. The County is 
on pace to complete its audit to have it in the hands of the LGC for their meeting the first part of 
February. This Sunday the construction package was submitted for publication. As we get into 
December (the last week) and the first week in January there will be a whirlwind of decisions to 
be made.  There is going to be a joint meeting January 10, 2023 of the Board of Commissioners 
and Board of Education.  
 

Commissioner Keyes made a motion to open the public hearing on funding for a 
new school.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mr. Lloyd Jones asked about the timeframe of the project. Dr. Carr said they are 

revisiting timelines. They had hoped to demolish the Pines Elementary School building in 
October but got behind on that. They are now looking for some rebates. Demolition hopefully 
will happen in January. METCON has indicated that will look to hire locals from Workforce 
Development. The Board of Education would like to be completed by Fall 2024; however, they 
are at the mercy of if/when items can be obtained. Both the Board of Education and Board of 
Commissioners are cooperating and she appreciates the support. 
 

Mr. Potter said if the County has to borrow the whole $20M, we would be at the limit of 
what the County can borrow--that’s why we are looking for rebates. We have $50M from the 
State and need to spend it wisely. 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
Mr. George Swain, Hwy 45, asked if DOT will be putting in turn lanes.  Dr. Carr said 

there is a grade configuration to determine how buses will enter the school and that will help 
DOT determine what will be done.  DOT is heavily involved. The community can vote on the 
grade configuration at the Washington County Schools website.  Chair Johnson suggested that 
the County put it on our website also.  

 
Mr. Potter said the County is also looking at our landfill to be able to accommodate the 

debris from the demolition.  
 
Commissioner Keyes commended Dr. Carr and Mr. Potter for their willingness to work 

together to do what is best for this County. 
 
Commissioner Walker made a motion to close the public hearing on funding for a 

new school.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 Mr. Potter asked the Board for a motion to approve RESO 2022-044 Supporting an 
Application to the Local Government Commission for its Approval of a County Financing 
Agreement – Financing for the New School.   
 

Commissioner Walker made a motion approve RESO 2022-044 Supporting an 
Application to the Local Government Commission for its Approval of a County Financing 
Agreement – Financing for the New School.  Commissioner Keyes seconded.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 DEPARTMENT INFORMATION UPDATE:  Every November, Ms. Rebecca Liverman, 
Cooperative Extension Director and her staff, Beth Jackson, Jalynne Ward and Gene Fox give a 
“Report to the People” by telling the Commissioners what Cooperative Extension has worked on 
this year.  Tonight is no different. 
 
 Cooperative Extension Staff handed out box dinners to the Commissioners and staff.  
Staff used each element of the box dinner to tell what’s been happening in their department this 
year.  Ms. Liverman stated that everyone needed to “think outside the box”.   Ms. Liverman said 
she has been with the County for 23 years and Cooperative Extension Director for 12.  She said 
she works with great people!  The box represented the Strader Building. 
 
 Next Ms. Jalynne Ward, Ag Extension Agent, said she has been here for three (3) years 
and asked everyone to look at their sandwich—wheat is grown here for the bread. Washington 
County has great agricultural resources:  corn, soybeans, cotton and peanuts.  She also mentioned 
that Commissioner Sexton contributes to them all.  Ms. Ward said that in 2022, we had 37 inches 
of rain.  The yearly average is 51”. She also helps the farmers meet/increase their yield of their 
crops. 
 

Mr. Gene Fox, Horticulture Agent, asked everyone to look at their lettuce & tomato.  He 
is responsible for anything that can grow around your home landscape and also bugs!! He said 
there are 46 commercial pest applicators in the County. Currently he has weed trials going on in 
Beaufort County. (Mr. Fox is an area agent for quite a few counties.) He diagnoses problems. 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

Ms. Beth Jackson is the County’s 4H agent.  She said she helps grow our youth 5-18 yrs. 
old.  She said she was responsible for the ham & cheese on the sandwich.  She said the livestock 
show (where they show hogs among other livestock) and the program will be celebrating 65 
years next year.  This year she said she was able to get a mobile dairy unit to visit the schools. 
Over 900 students got to see the Southland Mobile Dairy Unit and were able to see a milking 
parlor on wheels. The kids were amazed and it was a great experience. 
 

Mr. Ward also mentioned the bag of chips in the box dinner.  She said the County 
receives funding from JCPC that allows opportunities like 4-H summer camp or a 4-H 
conference.  Ms. Ward said she wanted to share a story with everyone.  She said she she got a 
call from a farmer who said a child attempted to take her life (from the Midwest) and said kids 
should be taught some mental health.  Ms. Ward said that next Thursday night, there is going to a 
farm theater—a skit—talking about stress and mental health—it’s for families that are in our 
County.  

 
Ms. Liverman asked everyone to look at the bottle of water.  She said drinking water is a 

healthy habit.  Then she asked everyone to look at the Tic Tacs in the box dinner.  They 
represent the SHIPP program which is run by Cooperative Extension.  $200,000 is what they can 
help folks in our County save. Volunteers help them also. 

 
 Chair Johnson said she looks forward to this “Report to the People” every year from 

Cooperative Extension.  Commissioner Keyes said that Ms. Liverman helps her whole family.  
Commissioner Phelps said they do a great job and Commissioner Walker agreed. 
  
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   Ms. Bennett stated that the Albemarle Commission’s 
current At-Large Delegate's term will expire on December 31, 2022.  The At-Large Delegate 
position for the 2023-2024 term now rotates to Washington County.  The Commissioners are 
tasked with appointing an At-Large Delegate to serve for our county. This appointee is not to be 
an elected official, but someone in the community who shares the same mission of the Albemarle 
Commission which is to enhance the quality of the lives of our citizens in the Albemarle Region 
through direct services and assistance in planning, program development and management, 
public-private partnerships and leadership. 
 

Ms. Bennett asked the Commissioners to please bring the name of an appointee to the 
December 5, 2022 Board of Commissioners meeting to be voted on at that meeting. 
 
 FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon said the budget transfers; budget 
amendments and the financial report were in the Commissioners’ package. Ms. Dixon noted that 
BA#2023-50 was voided due to various changes 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 

 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

 Ms. Dixon stated that the County may possibly be getting back $13,000 from the 
Medicaid audit.  Mr. Potter said he feels that it’s the hard work of the County staff on these 
years’ worth of expenses that allows the County such a collection.  
 
 Commissioner Sexton made a motion to approve the budget amendments/ transfers 
as presented above.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 RECOGNITION:  Chair Johnson recognized Commissioner Bill Sexton as he is coming 
off of the Board, thanked him for his service and presented him with a plaque from the Board. 
Chair Johnson spoke about her time working with him and said she wants to be like him.  
Commissioner Sexton said he has worked with her for a lot of years.  He said he first ran in 
1998, and then laid out 1.5 years after the OLF.  He said he feels like the Board has done a lot of 
good things and fixed a lot of things and this is one of the better boards he has worked with that 
accomplished a lot.   
 

Commissioner Keyes said she worked with his Commissioner Sexton’s dad when he was 
a Commissioner and said that he (current Commissioner Sexton) is one of the finest folks she has 
ever worked with. 
 

Commissioner Walker said he was Commissioner Sexton’s 7th & 8th grade teacher!  At 
that time, he would have not dreamed that they would be working together.  Commissioner 
Walker said he feels they worked well together. 
  

OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
Chair Johnson thanked everyone for their concern about her health.  She said she 

received a good report from the heart doctor and is good for another year. 
 
Commissioner Phelps stated he would like staff to work on a a resolution of support for 

child abuse in Washington County. 
 
Commissioner Sexton wished the Board “Good Luck”! 

 
Commissioner Sexton made a motion go into Closed Session pursuant to 

NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)--attorney-client privilege and NCGS 143-318.11(a)(6) to discuss 
personnel.  Commissioner Walker seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Back in Open Session, Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve BA #2023-055 
and the lobbying contract with Bob Steinburg and Jackson Stancil.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 
 



  DRAFT                                                                                                                                              

With no further business to discuss, Commissioner Phelps made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting.  Commissioner Walker seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

  
 
______________________________   _____________________________ 
           Tracey A. Johnson          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

    Chair                              Clerk to the Board 
 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda December 5, 2022
	12-5-2022 Item 1 Organizational items
	12-5-2022 Item 2 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Insolvents
	DOC120122
	DOC113022

	2023 Commissioner Regular Meeting Dates
	2023 Washington County Holiday Schedule
	Budget Calendar FY24 jjb edits
	FY24

	RESO 2022-046 ACCEPTING  APPROVING SALE OF REAL PROPERTY WESTON RD
	RESO22-047 Approving the Bonding of County Officials
	Letter of Support --Opioid -- MTW Dec 5, 2022
	12-5-2022 Item 3 (public forum)
	12-5-2022 Item 4 Department Information Update- Library
	12-5-2022 Item 5 Public Hearing; FY 24 CTP
	5a- Public Hearing Notice_Washington County (Riverlight Transit)
	Section 5311 (ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.

	Note re CTP and funding for FY2024
	Admin Grant 23-24
	Capital Grant 23-24
	5c- Program Resolution_Washington County (Riverlight Transit)
	Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.
	Affix Notary Seal Here

	5d- Public Hearing Record_Washington County (Riverlight Transit)
	Important – A public hearing MUST be conducted whether or not requested by the Public.
	PUBLIC HEARING RECORD
	Section 5311 (including ADTAP), 5310, 5339, 5307 and applicable State funding, or combination thereof.
	Affix Seal Here
	Voluntary Title VI Public Involvement
	Thank you for your cooperation.


	5f- LocalShareCertification for Funding_Washington County (Riverlight Transit)
	Source of Funds      Apply to Grant                Amount

	12-5-2022 Item 6 Public Hearing - Manufactured Home Ordinance
	WC-Mobile Home Ordinance 2022 jjb edit
	12-5-2022 Item 7 Employee of the Quarter
	12-5-2022 Item 8 Audit Summary & Draft Audit Report Link
	12-5-2022 Item 9 Boards & Committees
	Commissioners Seats on Boards and Committees as of January 3, 2022
	Sheet1

	12-5-2022 Item 10 Finance Officer's Report
	December 22 Budget Amend-Transfers
	11-29-22 Finance Report
	12-5-2022 Item 11 Other Items
	Reports for 12-5-2022 BoC Meeting
	Cover Sheet for Stat Report
	FY22-23 Statisitc Report (2)
	Detention
	EMS
	Planning & Zoning
	Senior Center
	 Tax
	Sheriffs Office
	Utilities
	Landfill

	WASHINGTON COUNTY CCPT Annual Report 2022 (002)
	CFPT Report 2021-
	11-7-2022 minutes



